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VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: .. .(gave!). .. The June 15th, 2005 meeting at the Mayor
Hannibal Tavares Community Center is now in session. Ladies and gentlemen, 1'd like
to introduce the Members that are here this afternoon. To my far left is Member Tavares,
Member Molina, Member Mateo, Member Kane, Member Johnson, Member Anderson,
and excused is our Council Chair Riki Hokama. And to my far right we do have
Cindy Young from Corporation Counsel; Mike Foley from, Director for the Planning
Department, as well as Joe Alueta from the Planning Department. And Council staff, we
do have Camille Sakamoto and Carla Nakata.
At this time, 1'd like to have the Members as well as the audience to turn off your pagers
or put it on silent mode as well as your cell phones. Members, we have two items on the
agenda, and we'll take one at a time.
And 1'd like to mention that the rules for testimony for both items will be, you do have
three minutes to testify, one minute to conclude. And, if you could, state your name and
the organization that you represent when you do come up for your testimony.
Members, we do have the first item on the agenda, Land Use 63, which is Change in
Zoning for Pukalani Community Cen ... , Community Church of the Nazarene. This is in
regards to County Communication No. 04-255, from the Planning Director, relating to a
request from Wayne Arakaki on behalf of Pukalani Community Church of the Nazarene
for a Change in Zoning for 2.154 acres situated off the Old Haleakala Highway at
Pukalani, Maui.

ITEM NO. 63:

CHANGE IN ZONING FOR PUKALANI COMMUNITY CHURCH OF
THE NAZARENE (C.c. No. 04-255)

VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: This afternoon we did have a chance to visit the site, and at the
site we had the people from the church present their project as well as the information
being provided by the Planning Department and comments from both the Fire as well as,
although the Police Department didn't have any comments at that time, we did have some
department that were represented.
What we're going to do is we're going to take public testimony first, then we'll have the
members of the church come up and do their presentation.
Soon after the
presented ... presentation made by the church, then we'll have the Planning Department
come up.
So, at this time, 1'd like to call on as our first testifier for this item Dan Cretton .

. . .BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
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MR. CRETTON: Okay. Yeah, wouldn't you know I'd be the first one picked. I was hoping
some other people would come up, so I'd have an idea what they were going to talk
about. I, I am a member of this church. I have been for about ten years.
I came here just to show support of the vision that the, the pastor and the leadership has
and saw the sign, and I didn't really have anything prepared, but I thought, well, maybe I
should just give you folks an idea, you know, if you don't, I mean it's a church. You
don't really, I just, I am a, a local resident for the last 30 years.
My wife is a Tajiri girl, born and raised here on Maui. We have raised our six children
pretty much in this church. We've been attending this church for over a decade, over ten
years. And our oldest son now is 29. He was, he was 19 when we first started getting,
coming to the church, and our youngest daughter is 19.
And the church has really been a blessing to us as a family. And I highly encourage
anyone who has children they're raising, find a church with a good youth group. That's
what this church has been for us. It's been a great place. Our children have made friends
in this church that they have gone through adolescence with and then on to college. We
have one, one of my son's is a graduate of Point Lorna University, which is a college of
this church's, Church of the Nazarene. And that's a college that the Church of the
Nazarene runs in San Diego.
I have, so far, two college graduates. One with a Master's; the other working on his
Master's. All my children are in school. I, I think I'm going to end up with six college
graduates, and I, I really do credit it, a lot of it to, well, Jesus Christ, of course. I mean,
that's, but this church was a vehicle for Jesus to operate through my family to help my
children stay on a straight and narrow. We were able to skip a lot of the nightmares. I'm
almost afraid to ask friends of mine that have teenagers anymore, how's the family. You
hear these horrible stories that kids are getting involved in. And we really skipped the
majority of that.
And I, I, so our church and our youth group had a lot to do with that. And the vision that,
I'm, I'm in agreement with the vision that this, the leadership has. It's not just putting up
a building that you come on, you know, on Sunday and worship. There's a lot of those
buildings already up, and they're, they're vacant most of the, the rest of the week. Their
vision is to have after-school programs, to be a blessing to the community.
To, I know one of the, the word, I'm not very, the, it's not an elder, it's a board member
of the church, well, and the fellow you folks have been working with. Mike Hillinger is a
mechanic, an excellent mechanic. And he's talked about providing classes for people,
you know, just sort of general mechanic type classes, sewing classes, classes on finance,
you know, helping people kind of get their, their, budgeting classes. Just things that will,
practical things -MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
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MR. CRETTON: -- oh, so, anyway, the church has been fantastic for my family. I think with
this building and this extension, the plans they have would make things even better. I
think will be even more of a blessing to the, to Maui. Okay.
VICE-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Sir, can you state your name?
MR. CRETTON: Oh, my name is Dan Cretton.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any question for the testifier? If not,
thank you very much. Second testifier on this same issue, item is Dale Kreps.
MR. KREPS: Good afternoon, my name is Dale Kreps. I'm the pastor of the Pukalani
Community Church of the Nazarene. I'm speaking in favor of the project. We have been
involved in a process for many years of trying to erect a building on our fac ... on our
property to, to assist us in serving the community. That's what we're all about. We've
been in this process for rezone for some time now, and it is our interest to comply with
the terms of the Planning Commission, and their recommendation for approval.
In the earlier meeting that we had, there was some discussion by Councilman Dain Kane
about the challenges of individuals who might live in certain locations having to drive out
of the driveway on a right-turn basis only. And I wanted to speak to that.
There are some terms that we wanted to agree to that the Planning Commission requires
for approval, and we're very much interested in working with those conditions. But
Councilman Kane presents a very interesting and important point that there is some, some
undue burden that could be placed on people.
We have folks who live right in the Hiwalani Loop, and so for them to exit out on Old,
Old Haleakala Highway and drive back up and around and back down to Hiwalani Loop
seems difficult and unnecessary, but if that's what is required of us then we will comply.
But that is something we wanted to at least make mention of, and we've been working
with Carla to try to understand where we are a little bit off in some of our understandings
with what the Planning Commission has recommended.
Anyway, I do appreciate your consideration. This has been a long struggle for us to get
approval. We are very much interested in serving the community. We are interested in
providing for our community things that tax dollars cannot possibly assist or do by
themselves and, or by, by itself.
And so, and then one, one mention was made of ideas that we have presented.
Everything is on the table. Somebody asked me moments ago if we would have a
preschool. That is on the table. That has been discussed in the past. It has been
recommended, and so we're looking at that. We're looking at after-school care. But
mainly right now our, our meetings are mid-week Wednesday and Sunday morning. And
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those, that's what we're making plans with. That's all that's firm. And so, thank you
very much.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA:
Member Anderson.

Thank you.

Members, any questions for the testifier?

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Hi.
MR. KREPS: Hi.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I have a couple questions for you. Do you plan to have
any evening events?
MR. KREPS: Yes. Wednesdays is primarily an evening event. We start at 5:00 p.m., with a
kids, kids group meeting from 5:00 to 6:30, and then from 7:00 to 8:30, as late as nine
o'clock, we have something for intermediate and high school students. So-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: When you say something, is it, is it, what kind of activity?
MR. KREPS: Well, it's like a, a worship service essentially. It starts off with music and then it
proceeds to prayer, and then a message, a lesson, and then a time of response, and then
dismissal.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay, and then, so I, so then how many days would you
anticipate having people coming to your church? Wednesday and Sunday, and any other
days?
MR. KREPS: Yes, for sure Wednesday and Sundays. And we, everything is on the table. You
know, we, we would like to look at the possibility of various daytime activities, including
a preschool, and evening activities, which would include hula ministry, hula practice. I,
I'm drawing a blank, but I mean other, other evening options. Smaller probably.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So, so it could be that, that you would be having gatherings
on multiple evenings every week?
MR. KREPS: That's a possibility. And we would hope that we would not be asked not to
provide services that are meaningful at other times.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And then how many cars would you anticipate, let's just
say at the, at the high end, say a Sunday service? How many cars?
MR. KREPS: Two hundred at the high end.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And are, are you anticipating a building of 12,000 square
feet?
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MR. KREPS: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you very much.
MR. KREPS: You're welcome.
VICE-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for the testifier? If
not, thank you very much. Before I close public testimony on this particular item, there
are anyone out in the audience that would like to testify, if you could come up at this
time. Seeing no one coming up, at this time, without any objections, the Chair would like
to close public testimony.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS .

. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Members. At this time I'd like to call on the
representatives from the Church to give the Members a five-minute presentation on your
project.
MR. HILLINGER: My name is Mike Hillinger. I'm a member of Pukalani Church of the
Nazarene. What we're trying to accomplish here in Pukalani is right down the road here
on the side of Hal. .. , Haleakala Highway there's a vacant piece of land that we own
without, without any debt. Excuse me, I've got a little bit of a cold right now.
We're chan ... , we're trying to change, we have five lots on that, on that piece of
property and five water meters. And we're trying to clean up the maps a little bit and
rezone it. We're trying to change two of our parcels from Public Use to P-l QuasiPublic. And the other three lots that we have are R-3, right now to P-l Quasi-Public.
And we're trying to utilize the Department to go through this process. And that is
basically what we're striving for right now. And as we testified earlier, we want to reach
this community. You know, this community is growing, and we're just trying to make a
multi-purpose building on that property where we can reach the community.
We've, we've been in this process pretty vigorously for the last five years. We have
lowered the water main on the side of Haleakala Highway and made an exit going onto
Haleakala Highway that was required by the Council. We are shielding the barriers of
our property with walls right now for our neighbors.
So there is hollow tile walls that will retain dirt that we could, that they could add on and
make higher if they wanted to, to block lights and sound and different things like that.
But, basically, we're just looking for a zoning change.
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VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you very much. Members, any question for the member
from the church that provided information regarding their plans?
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: I have a question, Chair.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, Member Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you. I guess one of the major concerns that were pointed
out, and I think Ms. Anderson touched on it briefly a little earlier, was the level of
activities that may occur. Only because you're almost completely surrounded by
residents.
MR. HILLINGER: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: And because of the projected growth of the, of your folks' church
and how active it's going to get, you're going to have a lot of people coming in and out.
MR. HILLINGER: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Is there a clear, do you folks have a clear picture that you can
present to us telling us what the type of programs you folks will be putting forward and
how active the property is going to be? Again, because it impacts your neighbors, and we
need to be mindful of them as well.
MR. HILLINGER: I understand. According to the County rules, we're going to have to
soundproof all our buildings. That's one thing. There's some agreements there that we
have to end all activities on that property at a certain time. There's also things about in
one way and out another way, you know. And there's been some amendments to the
rules that we have placed on your guys', I don't know, on your guys' agenda according to
things that brought up in the last meeting. I'm not sure, I don't know the really wording
for all this stuff. I'm kind of not the best one at this.
Sterling Kim is our contractor, and he's not here right now to really represent this. But
one of the things is in from Hiwalani Loop and exit onto Haleakala Highway. That's,
that's one way to lessen the traffic in our neighborhood. Another thing is all the lighting
in the parking lot must be shielded. Another thing is there must, every building that's
built on that property must be insulated properly, so the noise won't transform.
We're trying to build our church in the center of our property. We have a little, we have
about 3 acres there on that piece of property. It's a huge piece of property. We're trying
to locate our building on the most center part of the property as possible, so we're not so
noisy in our neighborhood.
As it is zoned right now, we could build our church in Hiwalani Loop, because the way
they designed the subdivision, they designed it for a community center, they designed it
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for an elementary school, a preschool and a church. And there is no church right here in
this subdivision and that's where that property is zoned for already.
We don't want to build our church right there in Hiwalani Loop because of this problem.
It will be too noisy. So we're trying to rezone it, so we can put it in the most center of
our property. I've got a map right here of the way we're going to do it, and our main
building is centered in our property.
And like I said earlier, we're going to put, I've got all prints of how the plants are going
to be around it to insulate light, to insulate noise. The way the structures are going to be,
it's a steel building, insulated walls with drywall on the inside. And there's not many
things, really, this community, I mean there is, there is options for our community, but I
don't see an individual person being able to do it unless you're, unless you're like a
County or church organization. If I was to try to do this in my own, I'd have to be a
Weinberg or something to build a building like this. Do you know what I mean? I
couldn't do it individually.
I'd payout of my ears for a half-acre lot here in Pukalani. For 3 acres I'd be paying a
ridiculous amount. So what I'm trying to say is individually I couldn't do this.
Corporately through the Church of the Nazarene we can reach our community and curb
the activities into a positive influence instead of a negative influence.
And like I, like Pat said, like Dan said earlier, there probably will be different things
going on each night of the week, but we're going to be the most courteous to our
community that we can by soundproofing, by locating in the center of our property, and
trying to restrict events to a certain time every night and very well enforce them.
There's one issue about the, the road going out on the highway. And the issue on that is
if it's not gated, people are going to shortcut through that road and go into Pukalani
Terrace, and that's going to be a worse situation than if it was not gated.
So, I just added to the amendment that we gate that road when church activities are not in
use, because anybody knows, if they went to our property earlier, they had to go all the
way up here, they had to come around here, they had to go down IoJani Loop and up
Hiwalani Loop to get to our property. If you could shortcut right off Old Haleakala
Highway into Pukalani Terrace you would. And everybody will do that if we don't gate
it.
So, that's kind of one direction that we made a change in on, on that amendment. And
there's a couple other wording things, like church activities versus one, if you just went
in there to get something you left or use a copy machine. You know, you have to still
exit on Haleakala Highway. I mean there's kind of a little bit of balance between church
activities and just regular daily use, use on the property.
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So, I think we gotta massage those amendments just a little bit to make it better for the
community not really to, we'll agree to the terms you gave us right off the bat, but the
terms are a little bit unclear about gating off the road and church activities on the
property.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you very much. Members, okay, Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I know it's been awhile since we've dealt with this, but I
appreciate your patience -MR. HILLINGER: Yeah, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: -- and, you know, sticking with us. I just made a few notes
with regard to some of the, it was from the Planning Commission meeting in '04, and
some of the comments, again, have you dealt with the traffic and safety issues with
regard to the Police Department's concerns? Have those been met?
MR. HILLINGER: We have. We talked to the Fire Department. There's a fire hydrant directly
across the street at Kua'aina Ridge, and there's also a fire hydrant directly across the road
on Hiwalani Loop. We haven't dealt much with, with the Police Department other than
the Police Department being there today at the property when we had our hearing, and
there was no comment made by him. He was asked to make a comment, and he didn't
make any comment.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. So, that, and, and I know that some of your area
neighbors had made some comments also about some of the concerns that they had at our
previous hearing, which was quite a while ago.
MR. HILLINGER: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Do you think in your view that you've been able to mitigate
the majority of concerns that have been raised with regard to your immediate neighbors?
MR. HILLINGER: I've been building communication with our neighbors in the, in the recent
months. Like I said earlier, we're putting a wall up across our mauka side property, and
it's, it's right on, it's better, it's, it's boundarying our high neighbor, and it's actually a
positive thing for him. He, he likes what we're doing on our property. I don't know if he
wants a church building next to him, but he likes having a wall next to him.
I've been keeping him informed with things that we're doing. I give him an up to date.
Like if I know the tractor's going to be on the land, I tell him a tractor's going to be on
the land. If we're going to have a team working on something, I tell him. If we're going
to have a service that's going to be loud some night, I'll tell him. And I've been working
with our community in that.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Oh, that's, I'm, I'm really glad to hear that, because I think
that was one of our concerns initially when some of the neighbors, one of the other issues
they had brought up, if my memory serves me correctly, is about the height of the
building.
MR. HILLINGER: Yeah. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Now, have you been able to mitigate in a way that is at least,
I guess because of where you're locating your building, does that address most of the
concerns of your neighbors that were finding that kind of an issue for them?
MR. HILLINGER: There, there still is concern about the height of the building with our
neighbors, because, you know, I mean, you see where we are. It's a beautiful, it's a
beautiful spot, and we're willing to work with them on that.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
MR. HILLINGER: If we need to move it back 10 feet or move it forward 10 feet or to the side.
I mean, nothing's in the ground yet. We have plans drawn up, but they're not permitted.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
MR. HILLINGER: And we're willing to work with them if, if there's comments. And like I
said, I've been communicating with the ones that have been giving us opposing resistance
on this, and haven't had, I've had better communication and not much resistance lately.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Good, and with regard to the color of the building, that was
one of the comments that was made in, I guess, some of the concerns that were
expressed. Are you going, have you decided yet on a particular color? Because I think
the objection was they didn't want stark white.
MR. HILLINGER: Yeah. No, we'll, we'll work with our community on that, definitely. We're,
we're trying to make native, we have a member of our church that does, he's an arborist.
And we're going to make native Hawaiian plants on that whole property, and there's a
drawing on this, of the planning on that property.
So, we're going to make it, we're, like I said, we're trying to make a multi-purpose
building to reach the community. We're not building a white cathedral church. I see, as
Dan said earlier, churches being empty. We're trying to make something that can serve
the community, like this community center on that piece of property in a much smaller
scale.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And, and I appreciate that. I'm sure your neighbors
appreciate that, too. With regard to the ingress, do you anticipate, particularly on days
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where you're going to be having worship services, any kind of a back-up on the highway
when people, you know, because there's not going to be a storage lane; is that correct?
MR. HILLINGER: Yeah, it's going to be, yeah, there's not going to be a storage lane. It's
going to be one way, a right turn going up and a right turn going in. So, both right turn
only going in and out.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: But, but you don't anticipate that there is going to be a
back-up on the highway of people trying to make that turn in?
MR. HILLINGER: Dain Kane brought up the suggestion when he was on the property that we
should still leave an exit onto Hiwalani Loop for people that live in the Pukalani Terrace
and allow them to exit on Hiwalani Loop if they live in the terrace. And that will lessen
the back up on that highway.
And most of our service hours aren't on peak times anyways. They're always at seven
o'clock, five o'clock in the evening. You know, I mean, it, they'd be coming in at 5:00
and leaving at 7:00. They'll be on a Sunday, coming in at 7:00 and leaving at 10:00. So,
I mean, evening time, it's mostly non-traffic times, I think, is when our church meets.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, and, and as long as you, the police did not raise that
issue, or the Planning Department did not make a recommendation· as to how you might
resolve that issue, did they?
MR. HILLINGER: We did a traffic assessment.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
MR. HILLINGER: And it came out, I'm not sure the ... it's in, it's in your guys' files.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah.
MR. HILLINGER: And I'm not sure what the results of that is.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: But, but there wasn't, you know, a set, because I think the
last time we discussed this there wasn't really a set recommendation, because we didn't
know what the flow of traffic was going to be at that point.
MR. HILLINGER: Yeah, it, its, it flows there at certain times of the day, but basically it's not
super bad across there as long as we can still exit also through Hiwalani Loop -COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
MR. HILLINGER: -- with majority onto the highway.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And my final question is just in regard to the sewage and
water. Now, you're going to be using a private sewage system?
MR. HILLINGER: We're going to have our own leech field type of system. We're going to
bury our own -COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So, you're going to be using septic?
MR. HILLINGER: We're going to have a septic tank. We have five parcels and five water
meters.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:
volume events?

Okay, and that capacity is sufficient for even the high

MR. HILLINGER: We were recommended by the Department of Water Supply not to tap into
the big main on the highway. They said that the more, there's more water in Pukalani
Terrace and use that water. So, the three lots that are along the highway are supposed to
be tapped into that main line on Haleakala Highway. They recommended us not to tap
into the line because of insufficient flow and to tap into Pukalani Terrace.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
MR. HILLINGER: And the Department of Water Supply has those records.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And so, that's our system, or is that a private system?
MR. HILLINGER: It's Pukalani Terrace, so it's a County system.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
MR. HILLINGER: But we have five water meters, so I think, I don't know, it seems like there
would be enough water there.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, I, I just, you know, I was just a little bit concerned
about that, because I know that some of the issues were raised before due to fire flow or
other issues.
MR. HILLINGER: I don't think we're going to be using much water than, I don't know, than
five lots would use. I mean, we're, we're not really using that much water for the things
that we do on our property.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, and, and, and the only reason I'm asking is because
right now that's one of our main focuses -MR. HILLINGER: Yeah, I understand.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: -- is on water with the drought.
MR. HILLINGER: Yeah, uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And, you know, whenever there's an intensification of use or
high concentration -MR. HILLINGER: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: -- I'm sure even for irrigation, people always look to well. ..
MR. HILLINGER: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: ... you know, you're over watering -MR. HILLINGER: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: -- or, you know, you're taking away other resources that
might be available for other types of development or agricultural use.
MR. HILLINGER: Well, I'm, I'm sure we could check with the Water Supply and find out what
the flow and the demand on that line is, and I don't think we need five water meters. We
could always kick some back to the County if we had to.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, 1,1, I, well, I really appreciate at least you're trying to
be considerate to your surrounding neighbors and also trying to deal with that. So, you
know, as long as, and we'll get the recommendation from the Department as well, and if
staff has any concerns. Thank you.
MR. HILLINGER: Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chairman. Good afternoon, Mr. Hillinger.
You're going to have a kitchen on the, as part of the multi-purpose building. Are you
looking at having that kitchen becoming a certified kitchen having to be, I guess, licensed
by the, the Department of Health?
MR. HILLINGER: I would say we would make a certified kitchen when we do build it.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay, and do you, cur. .. , currently does the church have a, a
yearly, a large fundraising event, for example, you know, food, selling food or anything
of that nature?
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MR. HILLINGER: We haven't done much fundraising, because we don't have much expense at
this point.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Uh-huh.
MR. HILLINGER: But I'm sure we will get into that mode when we get there.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay, and I, and I bring that up because it will probably
generate additional traffic into the neighborhood depending on, you know, when you
have that event. As far as the, what is the capacity you're looking at for the
multi-purpose building? How many people?
MR. HILLINGER: I think it's 300, 300 people or something like that. I got it, I got it all written
down in here.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.
MR. HILLINGER: I don't know exactly, but it -COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, on or about.
MR. HILLINGER: -- it seats about 300 people on or about, maybe a little less.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay, and in terms of your security lighting. I know there's a
condition in there that you're supposed to have your lighting shielded, so there's no light
pollution that could adversely affect the neighborhood.
MR. HILLINGER: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Has shielding been required ... (change tape) . ..
MR. HILLINGER: -- have been required for the parking and security and lighting.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. All right. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any more question for the member from the church?
If not, thank you very much.
MR. HILLINGER: Thank you very much, Council.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, Ms. Anderson.
MR. HILLINGER: Go ahead.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Sorry, Chair. Currently, how often do your members meet
on site?
MR. HILLINGER: We meet on Tuesday and Wednesday nights. Wednesday is from 5:00 until
8:30 to 9:00, and Tuesdays from about 7:00 to 8:30.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: But not on Sunday?
MR. HILLINGER: Not on Sunday.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
nights?

And how many cars are involved with those meeting

MR. HILLINGER: I would say 30 cars on those nights, Tuesday and Wednesday.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you. So, well, maybe if I may, Chair, just
continue with that?
VICE-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: If, if you're going from 30 cars to 200, then I guess you're
anticipating that your, your membership is going to increase a lot immediately.
MR. HILLINGER: We meet, we meet in this building right here.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Oh, you do meet here.
MR. HILLINGER: We meet downstairs here, and we have two services. We have a service at,
at 8:30 on Sunday and 10:30 on Sunday, and we have about 200 people that attend, 220,
180, something like that. It fluctuates.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I see. Okay.
MR. HILLINGER: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Any more questions, Members? Mr. Hillinger, thank you very
much.
MR. HILLINGER: Thank you for your time.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA:
Mr. Joe Alueta.

At this time, 1'd like to call on the Planning Department.
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MR. ALUETA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. The project before you is for a Change in Zoning
from the P-l Public, to the P-l Public/Quasi-Public District. Okay. Can you hear me
now? Can you hear me now?
You're dealing with a Change in Zoning for, to P-l
All right.
Okay.
Public/Quasi-Public. There are two parcels involved TMK: 2-3-31, parcel 11; 2-3-54,
parcel 150. Parcel 11 or, is the 1.65 acres and that was the big vacant lot that you guys
all saw today that fronts Haleakala, Old Haleakala Highway.
Parcel 150, is
approximately half acre and that parcel fronts Hiwalani Loop.
Currently, the, the 1.65 acre lot or parcel 11 is zoned R-3 Residential. Parcel 150 is
zoned Public Use. Public Use exists on a map, but there is no zoning ordinance or
standards for it. Therefore, that is why we're seeking to change both parcels to the P-l
Public/Quasi-Public Districts, because we do have a, a zoning standards.
As you saw, one side is already developed. The half-acre site with the Church of the
Nazarene for their evening services as indicated by the applicant's representative. And
then the lot fronting Old Haleakala Highway is currently vacant.
The Community Plan is Public/Quasi-Public, so they are being consistent with the
Com ... , Community Plan. The public hearing was, was first held on January 27th, 2004.
The zoning would allow for the applicant to seek financing for future expansion plans.
Although the, it is not required by the zoning application, the applicant had, did present
preliminary plans for a multi-purpose building, fellowship hall, and kitchen.
The Maui Planning Commission on May 11 th, voted to recommend approval of the
project subject to conditions. Those conditions are in your binder and attached as
Exhibit B of the zoning ordinance along with Land Zoning Map L-I069.
The recommended conditions from the Planning Commission was that the vehicles
access to and from the project site shall be maintained from both Old Haleakala Highway
and Hiwalani Loop as follows: one way in off of Hiwalani Loop and one way out, out of,
onto Old Haleakala Highway. Two, that all structures built on the property shall be
insulated to minimize noise. Three, that all activities shall end by 10:00 p.m. And, four,
that all lighting shall be shielded to minimize light pollution and shall conform with the
County's lighting standards. Those were the only conditions that were recommended by
the Planning Commission. Do you have any questions of staff at this time?
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Joe. Any questions for the Planning Department?
Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, thank you, Chairman. Did the Planning, Department or
Planning Commission recommend some type of traffic calming devices on Hiwalani
Loop, for example, such as speed humps, as part of their conditions or something to be
considered?
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MR. ALUETA: No, they did not. The main issues came up with regards to Hiwalani Loop was
the amount of traffic flow given the fact that you do have an ... , another
Public/Quasi-Public use which is the Hongwanji. I think it's Hongwanji Preschool. So,
to minimize traffic that's why they came up with the one way in, one way out.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. If I could follow-up on that. Looking at Page 2, on
this, on January 27th, 2004, I'm reading off the memo. It says here requested that the
applicant look into putting speed humps in Hiwalani Loop and doing some kind of memo
of understanding in which the applicant would construct buildings to minimize noise and
light pollution.
So, I'm just curious. It seemed to, I, I don't understand. It seems to say here that that
issue was brought up, so I'm kind of wondering where that is going. Are they going to be
putting speed humps or not? You know, what, what's the result of that? Because it, it
states right here that it was brought up for discussion.
MR. ALUET A: It was brought up for discussion, but it did not come up as a condition. The
four conditions that I read were the ones that were adopted by the, and recommended by
the Planning Commission.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And, and why weren't the speed humps considered? Do you
know? Do you recall?
MR. ALUET A: When I read the conditions no one, none of the Commissioners asked for it, but
I think, and the Commission, I think one was the, the proposal to have one way in, one
way out on the entrances to the project site.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Hokama.
MR. ALUET A: Excuse me, Mr. Chair, if I may add? Also, I was reminded that the applicant
didn't have control over Hiwalani Loop. They would have had to have gotten to get
permission from Department of Public Works to have those installed, as well as, I
believe, he'd have to get a petition from some, the, the people living on Hiwalani Loop to
be able to get that, those speed humps installed.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. I'd like to welcome the Council Chair Riki Hokama
to this meeting.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you. My question would be, I guess, from the
Director of Public Works. I am looking at the May 17th, 2000 ... you going be a while?
Okay, Chairman, I'll, I'll wait your opportunity for Public Works.
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VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: I, I'm sorry. Before Public Work goes on, I'd like to finish up
with the Planning Department, and then go into with Public Works, the Police
Department, Fire Department, Water Department for comments and Q and A. So,
Mem ... , okay.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Then I get for Planning. Then, Mr. Director of Public, Public
Works, you can listen to this question. I'm, I'm going to ask Planning the question first,
since it's on their communication of May 17, 2005.
In their response to the Committee, they mention that although there's only one tax map
key, there is still three individual lots, as I understand their response. Is this a problem of
zoning or subdivision because of the separate lots still yet, as part of this zoning request?
MR. ALUET A: From the Planning Department, yeah, no.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, Planning Department, if you could respond.
MR. ALUET A: No, because the zoning map will cover the whole, all the lots. And as, and as
Council has done in the past, we've, you've actually zoned portions of lots. As long as
there's a metes and bounds that we can determine on the ground, there's no problem with
zoning them.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for Planning
Department? If not, I'd like to have, oh, I'm sorry. Member Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Chair. Reviewing the Planning Commission minutes
as well as some discussion earlier today regarding the ingress, egress, is, is the Planning
Department supportive of the current condition that was imposed by the Planning
Commission, which allows only a one way in, which is a right turn off of Haleakala
Highway? Excuse me, one way in off of Hiwalani, and one way out, which is a right turn
only off to Haleakala Highway. Is that the current position of the Planning Department?
And are there any comments to what was discussed earlier about having a right turn in
right turn out, and then a possibility of Hiwalani having two way? Comments?
MR. ALUETA: The recommendations that, with the restrictions are from the Planning
Commission, not from the Planning Department. My Director has indicated that he has
no objections to the proposals that were discussed today, which was right turn in, right
turn out of Haleakala, as well as allowing for both in and out from only one driveway to
Hiwalani Loop.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:
Okay.
In that case then, I guess, following up on
Member Johnson's concern about coming up Old Haleakala Highway, not having a decel
lane to turn off of the highway into the property. Ms. Johnson, I think that's what, and,
and if when we're having a church service, and you're turning into the parking lot off of
Old Haleakala Highway, the concern was if we have a potential back-up to where,
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because it's only a two-lane road, that that would
Haleakala Highway because there's no decel lane to
comments on that from the Planning Department?
Works Department for their comments as well. But
Department at this point?

create a traffic problem on Old
turn right into the property. Any
And I'll also ask the, the Public
any comments from the Planning

MR. ALUETA: One option, because the, would be to have a road-widening lot in which they
would put a decel. .. , deceleration lane and that would minimizing the cueing. Also, as
indicated, I guess by both comments from Public Works, Police, as well as DOT in the
staff report, from memory I do not recall them having much concern with the right turn in
option. I think they were concerned with trying to make left turns across, coming down
and making left turns in.
Also, the, the traffic, although there is still traffic on Old Haleakala Highway, it is not
what it used to be from the old days because of the Bypass Road. So, it's not, it's
primary, those using Old Haleakala is pretty much local traffic.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay. The only, maybe the only concern I have with the
comments that were made by the Church representative was I think he used the time of
five o'clock in the afternoon, which seems to me that would be a high traffic time when
people are coming home from Central Maui coming Upcountry. And if they're coming
up Old Haleakala Highway, and if there's going to be a function that is at the same time
as an afternoon rush hour coming home, on a two-lane road without a decel lane, that
would create a potential back-up on Old Haleakala Highway. Any comments?
MR. ALUETA: No, I, I see your rational. That's why I, as indicated we, I think one of the
options would be for a lot dedication on that frontage to allow for a decel lane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Any more questions for Planning Department, Members?
Member John ... , Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
I, I'd like to just follow-up on that questioning.
Mr. Alueta, you said a road-widening lot. Now, the shoulder along that highway I'm
assuming is owned by the State. Is it County owned?
MR. ALUET A: According to the Public Works Director.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Maybe I'll just wait for the Public Works.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for the Planning
Department? If not, I'd like to call on the Public Works Department to give some
comments and following his comments, we'll have discussion on the roadway as far as
Haleakala Highway. Mr. Arakawa.
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MR. ARAKAWA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Let me. address some of the discussion that,
discussion points that have taken place. As, as far as we are concerned, while we respect
the Commission's recommendation, our original recommendation to the Commission was
to have one driveway going in and out on, onto Hiwalani Loop with a right in, right out
restriction onto Old Haleakala Highway.
And we are also, we had also recommended that a road widening lot, as well as the
improvements, be put in by the church improvements along Old Haleakala Highway. I
should also mention that the Code would require a road-widening lot be provided, but as,
as you might recall, the church has a deferral option for frontage improvements.
So, the Council may opt to insert a specific condition, which would require those frontage
improvements to be constructed so that the actual road, the right-tum lane can be
constructed with the development.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Hokama, question.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: The same question that I asked Planning Department earlier,
Mr. Director. With the one TMK and three lots, is there any concern from your
Department?
MR. ARAKAWA: Generally, as far as tax map parcels, we cannot allow buildings that would
straddle property lines, so I assume the church would do some consolidation of the, the
parcels prior to the actual construction taking place.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Just so we're very clear. The property, the _ __
lots, a structure may not straddle the lot line or the boundary line of the lot?
MR. ARAKA W A: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Even if it's the same ownership?
MR. ARAKAWA: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. I'm, I'm hoping the church is aware of this
requirement, so it can be dealt with. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kane, you had a question earlier.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Chair. I, I think the Director of Public Works
responded to my question, and I think he, his comment was related to their original
proposal to the Commission, was to allow a right tum in, right tum out only from the Old
Haleakala Highway, and then allow two way, two way traffic in and out of Hiwalani
Loop; is that correct?
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MR. ARAKAWA: Yes, that's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: And so, I'll take us back to the Committee meeting that we had
when former Chair Nishiki had this item before us, and I had a line of questioning that
had to do with, if we allow two way traffic in and out of Hiwalani, because we have a, a
scenario or a situation where we have discontiguous sidewalks on Hiwalani Loop, and
because it's close to the school, we have a lot of kids that walk to and from school, and
how does that create, I mean what, what issues does that create for, for your Department
with respects to safety concerns, which I think a lot of the community has, has brought
forward?
MR. ARAKAWA: Member Kane, I believe the subdivision there basically required sidewalks
on one side of the street. Should, you know, pedestrians be walking on the non-sidewalk
side, actually there, there should be a shoulder available for them to walk on as well.
We understand the concerns· of speeding, and there was some discussion at the
Commission level regarding implementation of speed humps by the applicant on
Hiwalani Loop. And that could be made, you know, a specific condition of the, the
zoning change as well, you know, should the Council decide to do so.
Our normal process for the installation of speed humps, of course, would be to try to
obtain the signatures from 80 percent of the owners along that segment of the street first,
though. So, I, I just bring that up for the, the Commission's, I'm sorry, the Council's
consideration.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: So, I'm sorry. You're suggesting that we consider possibly as an
option us imposing a condition on the church to fund speed humps?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Now, Mr. Chair, when we get into discussion I'll, I'll make a
comment on that, but that would be more or less circumventing the very process you
described that's already in place, though. Because if 80 percent of the Hiwalani Loop
residents don't want speed humps, then I don't know if that's something we want to do.
Anyway, thank you, Chair. Thank you, Director.
MR. ARAKAWA: Mr. Chair, I, I, I just want to clarify. I, I didn't say, you know, 80 percent of
the residents didn't want speed humps. It was that we would require that 80 percent of
the residents sign their petitions wanting speed humps. So, I just wanted to clarify that.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Yeah. No, and I, I understood that. My, my comment was
basically if we don't have any comments from the Hiwalani Loop members about having
a, having speed. In other words, you need 80 percent approval before you can actually
move forward with the process of speed humps. And by us imposing a condition on the
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church to do it would circumvent that process and that the Hiwalani Loop people would
not have any comment on that, on that condition.
So, that's, that's right. But I understood where you're coming from. Thank you. Thank
you, Chair.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA:
question earlier?

Thank you, Member Kane.

Member Anderson, you had a

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. I think the Director partially answered
my question, but, you know, you did say something that kind of confuses me. You say,
you said that the church has a deferral option for frontage improvements. How did they
receive that deferral option?
MR. ARAKAWA: Sorry. This, this provision, the deferral option is allowed by the Code. It,
it's, if I can remember, the specific Section is 16.26.3304.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: It's allowed with your approval?
MR. ARAKAW A: No, it, it's just allowed as an option for the church, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: For anybody?
MR. ARAKAWA: No, for a church.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Oh, for a.church.
MR. ARAKAWA: A church. A church use, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I'm sorry. The church, a church has lots of deferral
options I guess. Do you, could, could you tell us what other deferral options they have
exercised as far as parking and whatnot?
MR. ARAKAWA: Councilmember Anderson, as far as our Department is concerned and that's
the only one that I'm, I'm aware of. If there are other water types of exemptions, I guess
that question could be directed at the Water Department representative.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So, you're saying that because they have this option to
defer frontage improvements given to them, because they're a church, the Council in, in
conditioning a zoning could remove that option by requiring that they do the
improvements?
MR. ARAKAWA: Yes, I'm just putting that out as an option to this Committee.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Has there been any discussion by the church that they
would like to defer any frontage improvements?
MR. ARAKAWA: We haven't discussed it with the church, but our comment letter to the
Commission, prior to the Commission hearing clearly stated that we would like to see a
road-widening lot and frontage improvements.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, given that, is there any option then to actually widen
the roadway enough to allow, maybe put the ingress, egress in the center of the lot rather
than at the end towards the subdivision, but put it in the center of the lot, and then widen
the highway to a, to a, to the extent that it would allow for ingress and egress, not just
right-hand turns? But, because I'm just trying to look for an option to having 100 cars
go, go through this small subdivision cul-de-sac.
MR. ARAKAWA: The, the present layout of the Old Haleakala Highway frontage, right in front
of the Church of the Nazarene lot has a left-turn lane, which goes into the Kua'aina Ridge
development. And I believe you have that graphic in your file where that left-turn lane
basically covers just about the entire frontage of the church lot.
So, we have some concerns about having some sort of a left-turn lane on Old Haleakala
Highway into a driveway to the Church of the Nazarene. And, in fact, that was one of the
items which was discussed before the Planning Commission. The Commission requested
that we look at perhaps having the driveway relocated further in the Kahului, closer to the
Kahului boundary of the property. However, that would conflict with that left-turn lane.
And also the other issue that we had is, you know, the slope of that section of Old
Haleakala Highway. The speed limit there is generally 35 miles an hour, and, and there's
a curve as you go on the Kahului side, which presents some sight distance issues.
So, from our standpoint, we would recommend against doing some sort of a left turn into
the church as well as a left turn out, because of that sight distance, and the slope, and the
speeding issues, and that left-turn lane.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Mr. Arakawa, do you have the map in front of you that
shows, or can you find it? It's Exhibit 3, in the, in the report from the Planning
Department. Probably about midway in the report where there's a series of maps, and it
shows the, the larger lot, the R-3 that fronts Haleakala Highway.
What would have been the normal ingress, egress to this parcel of land? I mean we can't
landlock anybody, so where would, would it be through this from, from Hiwalani Loop?
I mean, say they were going to just build residential there as it's designated.
MR. ARAKAWA: Well, if, if that property were developed, say in a single-family case, the
traffic generation, of course, would be much lower. And we, we generally would not
restrict, you know, the movements for, you know, one parcel like, like that. But I think
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the deciding factor in, in that case would be that, you know, if, if you are looking at a
single-family use, you are looking at a much lower traffic generation.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, that's a given. I'm trying to find out where, if we
were not to give this Change in Zoning and it remained R-3, and it was used for
residential purposes as it's designated for three lots, what would, where would be the
ingress and egress? Would it be from Haleakala Highway, or would it be from, through
the church parcel?
MR. ARAKAWA: Well, let's say that R-3 property were, were just proposed for development
on its own, the access would have to be off of Old Haleakala Highway. I mean that's the
only street that has, it has frontage, frontage on, so it would have to be there.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so on ... thank you, Mr. Chair.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Ms. Anderson. Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, thank you, Chairman. Mr. Arakawa, just for the record,
the Traffic Safety Council never had any comments on the traffic situation as well, or was
this matter sent to them for comment?
MR. ARAKAWA: As, as part of the SMA process, no, we, we did not send it to them.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay, and at this point Hiwalani Street you think is sufficient
to accommodate any possible overflow parking that may be needed? Because earlier we
had Mr. Hillinger from the church mention that with the new building coming in, there
may be a, a major fundraising event or two. I think there's roughly about 130 or so
parking stalls and the building capacity is around 300.
So, you don't think there would be any major issues with parking on Hiwalani Street as
well for, in, in the event there's some big, the church has a big event going on?
MR. ARAKAWA: We, well the, the church, generally, it's hard to foresee the membership of
the church over a long period of time. The membership may increase over time. So, we
can only look at the, the square footage of building and require the, the parking
requirements accordingly.
If there is a problem with parking on neighborhood streets, we, we would try to, probably
we along with the Planning Department, would try to approach the church and try to
work out some sort of a solution, which would be satisfactory to all parties. And, and
that could mean staggering the services, or, or it could mean ... (change tape) . .. so,
we'll try to work it out in that fashion.

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you.
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VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Molina. Members, any more questions for
the Public Works Director? If not, thank you very much, Milton. At this time, I'd like to
call on the Fire Department for comments. Captain Martin.
MR. MARTIN: Good afternoon, everyone, Members of the Committee. My name is Captain
Val Martin with the Fire Prevention Bureau. The parcel or the project was brought to our
attention several years ago. We did make a request to have a water issue addressed. That
was the installation of a fire hydrant that the developer has completed about 18 months
ago. That's already installed. We don't see any fire protection issues concerning the,
with the water.
The emergency access also appears to be adequate right on Haleakala Highway.
Whatever decision is made, or if one is made concerning the egress and ingress of the
of the parcel, whether it's through the subdivision or it's through Old
Haleakala, our emergency units would still use Old Haleakala, would still make a left
turn.
So, that really doesn't affect us. Whether the gates are locked, that doesn't affect us. We
would, we would gain access. The only thing we would ask is that the developers do
maintain that driveway on Old Haleakala even if it's not used, but if we could have it
maintained.
We will look at any building permits that are applied for concerning the kitchen, the
building.
The Building Department will also be looking at the fire sprinkler
requirements. We'll be looking at the details. That's about it.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you very much. Members, any question for the, Captain
Martin from the Fire Department? If not, thank you very much, Captain Martin. At this
time, I'd like to call on the Water Department representative, Ellen Krastoff [sic].
MS. KRAFTSOW: Good afternoon. Thank you, Mr. Chair. We, we really don't have any
updated comments other than the ones that you have in Exhibit 17. This file that I have
doesn't have any updated correspondence. With our Engineering Division I would
imagine there must have been some if there was a hydrant installed since then.
At the time we were concerned that there be fire flow, domestic and irrigation
calculations for all structures and to verify meter adequacy. At the time, the two
five-eighths inch meters that we knew existed were not adequate to serve the proposed
use, that a one-inch meter would be required, and the one-inch meter would not be able to
be issued because of the finding of shortage.
There was a proposed eight-inch line to the detector check, which we felt would be
inadequate and that to meet fire standards a 12-inch line would be need, needed, and that
would only involve a 100 feet because there's an existing 12-inch water line to the south
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between the property line and the Pukalani Community Center.
backflow preventer should be required.

And an improved

So, those were our five comments, and I have no basis to change any of those at this time.
Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you very much. Members, any questions for the Water
Department? If not, thank you very much. Corporation Counsel, any comments in
regards to the project?
MS. YOUNG: No, Mr. Chairman, we have no comment.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any questions for the Corporation Counsel? If not,
thank you very much. At this time, the Chair would like to entertain a motion to pass the
revised proposed bill on first reading and file the County Communication.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Seconded.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: It's been moved by Member Hokama, seconded by Member
Mateo to move forward the proposed bill entitled, A Bill for an Ordinance to Change
Zoning from R-3 Residential District and Public District to P-l Public/Quasi-Public
District (Conditional Zoning) for Property Situated off the Old Haleakala Highway at
Pukalani, Maui, Hawaii, on first reading and to file County Communication No. 04-255.
Members, any discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Was the maker of the motion going to start off discussion or
not because I would like to introduce an amendment to the conditions of zoning?
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Hokama waived... to you.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, okay, thank you. Then, Mr. Chairman, I move that the
first condition of zoning be amended so that the vehicle access to and from the project
site will be, will be maintained from both Old Haleakala Highway and Hiwalani Loop as
follows, that's all the same. And it's a right turn in, right turn out on, from Old Haleakala
Highway, and in and out off of Hiwalani Loop.
And I guess they can figure out the wording so it makes some sense, but, and also that
access, through access be prohibited, or be, be controlled, I guess, would be more correct.
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Through access from Old Haleakala Highway to the Terrace, Pukalani Terrace be
controlled by the owners.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Second.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. It's been moved by Member Tavares, second by Member
Johnson to do a right turn in and a right turn out on the Old Haleakala Highway, and a
one way in and a one way out on Hiwalani Loop.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: No, just an, just an entrance.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, just an entrance on Hiwalani Loop.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, allowing both, both movements in and out.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Fine.
COUNCILMEMBER T A V ARES: And that through traffic from Old, Old Haleakala Highway
to Pukalani Terrace Subdivision be controlled by the owner.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Members, you heard the motion. All in favor say aye.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, Mr. Chairman.
VICE-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Oh, discussion.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I'm sorry.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: I'm sorry. Discussion. Member Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes, I know that might have been a little bit of a mouthful,
several mouths full, mouths full, but I think what, to, to restrict the egress and ingress on
Old Haleakala Highway to me will put more traffic into the residential neighborhood by
saying it's one way in from Haleakala Highway and one way out at Hiwalani Loop.
Also, at this time, I'm not convinced really totally that there needs to be a right-turn lane
on Old Haleakala Highway to prevent back-up of traffic, because, you know, this is, I
live down the road over there, just beyond here. I come up this highway at least once or
twice a day. You will notice if you drive up and I think I'm correct, maybe because I'm
so familiar with it, I just blank it out.
At the, at the area where there's Minit Stop and McDonald's on the right-hand side, there
is no right-turn storage lane and that is a very, very busy place. And I think that we can
also, maybe it's off the wall, but we could also look at not having this lane as a
traffic-calming device where people will have to slow down. If you put in a right-turn
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lane and as people pull off, some impatient folks are going to pull out to go around them,
and perhaps end up in the lane of traffic coming down the hill.
So, I'm not really convinced yet that a right-turn lane might be necessary at this point.
The other consideration that was going through my mind as we were discussing this was
as the Haliimaile projects come on line there may be members of those communities,
both the Maui Land and Pine project and the A & B project that would want to join this
church. And at that time there may be a need at, you know, because of more increased
traffic coming uphill, you know, for some further adjustments in the future.
So, I would, I would suggest that the County get the right-of-way, the roadway lot
dedication for that in the future, but not require it at this time. But I'm not, you know,
I'm just thinking out loud, kind of, so, if that's not something that is palatable to the
body, you know, I don't have a problem with leaving that part out.
I also think that the Hiwalani Loop egress and ingress, who are the people that are going
that way? It's the rest of your neighbors for the people who live in Hiwalani Loop. It's
not that somebody's going to come off from Upper Pukalani or Makawao and come
through that way to go to the church necessarily. I mean, they'll have to go through, left
to get in there, but they'll come out on Haleakala Highway to go back to Makawao. So, I
think most of the traffic that will be generated in that area when they leave a service will
be the residences, the other neighbors in this whole terrace area.
I do also agree that there needs to be a way to block the traffic from going straight
through as a shortcut, because I for one would love to use it, because I would go straight
that way to Palalani Street and that would be a lot quicker than the way I go now. So, I
think that, that something needs to be designed.
I, when I looked at the map on Exhibit 9, Members, where all those maps are, I think that
somewhere in between, so that people can still access the parking lot and do their church
business somehow can be worked out, and then let the, the church people decide how
they would want to prohibit the through traffic. I think they would know their activities
and their, their members, where they're living and the driving habits, and where would be
the best place to actually place a barrier or barriers. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Tavares. Members, any more discussion?
Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I, I guess it would be a question to perhaps Public Works or
the other Members. One of the things that, from my understanding anyway, is that the
roadway lot dedication, it's possible that it would never be built upon, but what would be
the harm, I guess, in at least securing that, so that in the future if the needs did change
that we could at least be assured that that would be available? Mr. Arakawa.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Arakawa.
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MR. ARAKAWA: Councilmember Johnson, the, the roadway lot would, would be required by
the Code. So, I guess the only question is whether or not the Council would like to
impose a condition to require the frontage improvements, or to just defer it at this point.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Then thank you for clarifying that because I
understood Ms. Tavares to say that, you know, not require it, but it is required. It just
wouldn't be necessarily imposed up front.
MR. ARAKAW A: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
MR. ARAKAW A: So, so, basically if there is a deferral given and there is a future need for this
right-tum lane, then it'll probably be the County's nickel to basically put it in and that's
also the, something that the Committee should consider.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So, what you're saying though is that we could or perhaps
Corporation Counsel could stipulate that if at some time in the future there is a need to
utilize or to exercise that roadway lot dedication that there be some kind of a participation
requirement. Is that possible, Corporation Counsel? If that would be required sometime
in the future.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Corporation Counsel.
MS. YOUNG: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. That would be required by the Code, and in
particular Section 16.26.3304 would require, I'm sorry, 3304.1 would require a church to
dedicate property for roadway widening purposes prior to the issuance of a building
permit. So, that is required at this point in time. The only thing that is not, that a church
would be exempted from currently is the improvement of that roadway widening lot.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So, you're saying essentially that there is no way that we
could require that at some time in the future that they pay for a portion of that
improvement; is that correct?
MS. YOUNG: There is no requirement in the Code that would, that could be a condition of
zoning.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. But I guess what I'm trying to make clear is in my
own my mind. Can require, can we require that as a condition of zoning that if at some
time in the future there is a need and there is an impact that's triggered by traffic through
that area, that they at least participate, let's say if it was to be whatever the percentage of
traffic that could be attributable to their, I guess, activities that they participate at some
level?
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MS. YOUNG: Yes, the Council could impose a condition. There would need to be a specific
trigger that would need to be in the, or some kind of parameters as to, right, it could be, it
could be when the pub. . ., when the Public Works Director requires it or, there, there
would need to be some kind of trigger. There would need to be some kind of, of, a
definitive point as to when they would need to, when that requirement would kick in.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I, I really, you know, to the Chair, I really would like to see
some type of condition inserted that if at some point in the future, and it may never be
necessary, but if an impact is created that is largely something that's created by, whether
it's private development or a church, you know, the general public should not really be
bearing the full cost of that.
So, I don't know how we would accomplish that, but, I, I really would prefer to see
something that, while it may never be exercised, if at some time in the future there could
be some kind of a formula and language inserted in this. I, I would really prefer to see
that. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Johnson. Member Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes, thank you. I apologize if I wasn't clear about what I
was recommending regarding that, why the, the roadway-widening lot. It is a
requirement, and I think that it should be required, but the improvements to that area be
deferred. They're not asking for a waiver, so I think they're still obligated at some time
in the future, and I think between Planning, Public Works and the property owners or the
church, could determine what that trigger may be.
And I think the need for a right-turn lane is only going to happen when the Haliimaile or
any other residential properties are developed that are makai of the church property.
Those would be the people coming up to a service and turning right.
So, I think between and among them, perhaps by the time we get it at first reading we can
have that trigger identified. But that was what I had meant earlier. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mem ... , Member Tavares.
MR. ARAKAWA: Mr. Chair.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Arakawa.
MR. ARAKAWA: May I just make a clarification? 16.26.3304 actually allows for an
exemption of the frontage improvements. It's, it's not a deferral. I'm sorry. So, I just
wanted to clarify that.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Mr. Chair, then if it is an exemption, does that mean that we
cannot legally require it?
VICE-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Corporation Counsel.
MS. YOUNG: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. This would only pertain, this is a, a section out of the
Building Code Section of the, of Title 16, but that would, it's absent, its exemption in the
Building Code would not preclude Council as a condition of zoning to impose that kind
of requirement.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Then, then I would propose whether it's now or at first
reading, because I don't know what language would be inserted and I don't know what
the trigger would be. But when this comes forward for first reading I would ask staff or,
you know, let's say to work with Public Works and Corporation Counsel to draft
something so that there would be a protection. At least so that we would not have to then
ask the general public to pay for that improvement.
And it may be that when, as Councilmember Tavares said when Haliimaile does comes
up, that at least, there may even be a willingness to participate on their part, you know, if,
if that's a possibility, but I would like to see some protection inserted and some language
inserted so that it's not just going to be paid for by the taxpayers.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Ms. Johnson. If you could work on, on that before
first reading, and then we'll take it up at first reading.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I, I, I would ask for assistance from staff then, so that-VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes, you could.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: -- thank you.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Any more questions, Members? We do have an
amendment to Condition No.1. All in favor of the motion say aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
VICE-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Opposed.

VOTE:

AYES:

Councilrnernbers Anderson, Hokama, Johnson, Kane, Mateo,
Molina, Tavares, and Vice-Chair Pontanilla.

NOES:

None.

- 32-

LAND USE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

June 15, 2005

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

Chair Carroll.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

APPROVAL of amendment to the main motion.

VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Motion carried. Back to the main motion. All in favor of the
main motion, oh, I'm sorry, discussion on the main motion. Any discussion on the main
motion as amended?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: You're all looking at me. I guess I should start.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Mr. Chairman, I'm sorry, but I've got a big problem with
this, and, and I'm really sorry, because I would like to support it, but I just feel if, if we
could have full ingress and egress off Haleakala Highway I would be 100 percent for this.
But because the traffic primarily is going to go through this residential street, and, you,
know, it's a 12,000 square foot building.
If they have a membership of 220 people right now, once that building is built the

membership will grow and that will add more cars to this very narrow residential road. I
just think it's an inappropriate place to put this much traffic, and I'm sorry I can't support
it for that reason.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Anderson. Any other discussion? Member
Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Chairman. I'm really struggling with this because of
the concerns that Ms. Anderson just put forward. Keeping in mind that the Community
Plan designation for this area did not include the R-3 and the three lots that are now being
asked to be consolidated into one area, and, therefore, providing for a larger facility that
was envisioned, I guess, decades ago. Now, that's my understanding, and if I'm wrong
about that, then, then I'm being misinformed.
I think because of the size of this project that's going into this area and because of the
restrictions of site distance off of the Old Haleakala Highway, I, I envision a lot of traffic
coming through Hiwalani Loop, and impacting already Hiwalani Loop who gets
impacted by Iholani Street, Ipolani Street, Iwalani Street, all these guys who are coming
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out up past the school and out to Old Haleakala Highway, there's going to just be an
extensive burden created in this area.
For, for that reason and because the sidewalk system within Hiwalani Loop is
discontiguous and it makes kids and people have to cross the road if they're going to
utilize. I'm not sold on walking on what the Director talked about having no, no
sidewalk, but still having an area where, where they can walk. I just have my concerns,
and it's primarily for safety reasons. I, I'm going to vote no. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Kane. Any more discussion? Okay. All
in favor of the motion to approve, as amended, is a Bill for an Ordinance to Change
Zoning from R-3 Residential District and Public District to P-l Public/Quasi-Public
District (Conditional Zoning) for Property Situated off the Old Haleakala Highway at
Pukalani, Maui, Hawaii, say aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: All those opposed.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: No.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: No.

VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Hokama, Johnson, Mateo, Molina, Tavares, and
Vice-Chair Pontanilla.

NOES:

Councilmembers Anderson and Kane.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

Chair Carroll.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

Recommending
FIRST
READING
of
revised
bill,
RECORDATION of unilateral agreement, and FILING of
communication.

VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Let it be known there are six ayes, and two noes, and one
excused. Motion passes. Thank you very much, Members. At this time, the Chair would
like to call a recess. Before I do call a recess, you know, the Chair intended to call a
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recess at six o'clock for dinner, but if you guys want to go for dinner now, then we'll
recess to 6:30, so you guys can have your guys' dinner. Any objections?
Okay. We'll take a 1S-minute break. We'll be back here at five to 6:00, and we'll
reconvene to our second item on the agenda. So, we'll take a 1S-minute break .
. . . (gavel) . ..

RECESS:

5:40 p.m.

RECONVENE:

5:59 p.m.

VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: ... (gavel). .. The Land Use Committee is now back in, in
session.

ITEM NO. 4:

COMMUNITY PLAN AMENDMENT AND CHANGE IN ZONING
FOR 196-UNIT SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL SUBDIVISION
(HALIIMAILE) (C.C. No. 00-86)

VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, our final item on the agenda is LU-4, Community
Plan Amendment and Change in Zoning for 196 units single-family residential
subdivision in Haliimaile. This is in regards to County Communication No. 00-86, from
the Planning Director, transmitting a request from Mercer K. Vicens, A & B Properties,
Inc., for a Community Plan amendment and a Change in Zoning to develop a 196 unit
single-family lot residential subdivision on 4S acres, a lO-acre park, and a drainage
retention basin, and sewer treatment facility on 7.994 acres, located in Haliimaile, Maui,
TMK No. 2-S-03, parcel 10.
At this time, the Chair would, would receive public testimony at the start followed by
presentation by the developer and as soon as the developer has done his presentation, the
Planning Department would be the next department to come up and provide their
information, and the rest of the departments will, will follow.
At this time the Chair would like to let the Members as well as the Administration know
that we'll take public testimony, then we'll break for dinner, and come back after dinner
and continue our business on LU-4.
At this time, the Chair will receive public testimony. I'd like to remind the people out in
the audience as well as the Members and Administration that I'd like to see your cell
phones as well as pagers on the off position, or on the silent mode.
The Chair will allow public testimony, three minutes, one minute to conclude, and if you
can, or if you will, please provide the name and the organization that you represent as you
come up and testify. So, the first testifieron LU-4 is Joan Martin.
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.. .BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
MS. MARTIN: Good afternoon, Vice-Chairman Pontanilla and Members of the Land Use
Committee. My name is Joan Martin, and I'm a member of the coordinating group of the
Maui Nui Housing Task Force, and I'm testifying in support of the proposed project on
behalf of the Task Force.
It is my understanding that the development proposes that 10 percent of the houses will

be classified as affordable and distributed throughout the development. It is also my
understanding that there have been discussions regarding a ten-year requirement before
the affordable houses could be sold.
The Task Force recognizes the critical need for affordable housing Upcountry, and we
support a requirement that any development be required to include affordable housing. In
fact, we prefer that the actual building of affordable housing to any cash in lieu of
contribution arrangements that are difficult to monitor with the passage of time.
While we support the proposed project, at the same time we encourage this Committee
and the developer to see that 10 percent affordable housing proposal as an initial
discussing point, as a floor and not a ceiling. In the inclusionary housing ordinance
"Affordable Housing Now", which the Task Force has submitted to
Councilmember Danny Mateo, we have called for a 20 percent affordable housing
inclusion in all developments in Maui County.
We also believe that affordable housing can be built that will remain in a, in the
affordable housing pool and not eventually be sold at market prices thereby continuing
the problem of a reduced affordable housing supply.
The ten-year buy-back is designed .. (change tape) . .. support that. However, that is only
half the solution, and we must continue to explore how to do a better job of expanding
and maintaining our affordable housing inventory. We hope that if this project is built, it
be built quickly and that the affordable homes are brought online at the same time as the
market-priced homes. The need is desperate. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Ms. Martin. Any questions for the testifier? If not,
thank you very much.
MS. MARTIN: Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Second person to testify is Ken Hoopai, Jr.
MR. HOOPAI: Hello. Ken Hoopai, Jr., for Freedom Seekers of Hawaii. I'm all for the dinner
side, by the way, so I going hurry up. You folks were all given papers today. It's
something that we had put together that you folks really need to take a good look at. I'm
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all for affordable housing on Maui, because we, we need it so badly, but it's the land
issue that we need to look at. It's to find out who actually owns the land.
We know from past history that A & Band Maui Land and Pine were leasing the lands
before. Now the Royal Patent still exist. There are families out there that are finally
awakening, wakening [sic] up and realizing that they do own land. And in the past also,
there was, it was so, so expensive to get lawyers and attorneys to fight for these lands.
But, today, because people get heart, they're doing 'em from their heart.
So, I ask you folks to look at this paper tonight or today when you get the time to make
sure that the lands that we going use going be clear. That not going get all this hakaka
coming up again, because these families really need the land too. We all need.
But, please take a good look at it, so we no more trouble. So, people no more bad
feelings when they living in the house. And affordable housing, yes, we need that too.
So, anyway, my name is Ken Hoopai, again, and I thank you for, for spending the time
here tonight for us and enjoy your dinner. Again, mahalo.
VICE-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Hoopai. Members, any question for the
testifier? If not, thank you very much. Next testifier is Tracy Stice.
MR. STICE: Good evening, Members of the Council. My name is Tracy Stice, and I'm
speaking as an individual and as a real estate broker. And I'm not speaking for or against
this specific project. I'm speaking about housing in general.
First, I wanted to commend you for finally having a hearing on this. It's been many,
many years since the Council's looked at projects Upcountry, and there's a dire need for
housing. I gave you all a copy of the, a printout that's current today in all of Upcountry
Maui, Haiku, Paia, Kuau, Makawao, Pukalani, Kula.
Under $600,000, there's 11 houses, and I wouldn't exactly call $600,000 affordable
housing. And the only way we're going to have more housing is to work with
landowners and give them reasons and incentive to take some of their marginal lands and
to put them into housing.
There, there, the land's there. There just isn't a reason or an economic incentive for the
people that own the land to develop it. I know you have to deal with the State Land Use
Commission on the larger parcels. Recently there was a law passed giving enabling
leg ... , legislation to the counties.
Your House Bill 1640, is going to allow counties to designate the important agricultural
lands. You'll be seeing that coming through pretty soon. It'll be your responsibility to
work on that. But the lands that aren't prime agricultural lands you'll be able to
designate some of that into the Urban District and allow more affordable housing projects
in general.
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Any housing that we can create right now is going to open up the pipeline, and right now
it's simple economics. Supply and demand, our lack of availability has driven prices to
the moon. I've been in the real estate business for 27 years, and it's really depressing for
me to not be able to sell homes to local people anymore. It really takes the fun out of it
when all of the clients are people from the mainland with buckets of money from the
stock market and their investments.
And my people and friends, and the people I paddle canoe with down at NaKai Ewalu,
they can't afford things. And it's part of your responsibility to help create more supply,
not create roadblocks to keep housing from coming onto the market.
So, what I'm asking you to do is to look at this project on its merits. Maybe they, you
need a larger affordable housing component. Maybe you don't. But one thing that you
do need is more housing for the people of Maui, and the only way they're going to do
that is for you that work with people to create more land with newer available
infrastructure and to open up the bottleneck so that the, the capitalistic system can work
within the structure of government and create more land and, and housing for the people
of Maui. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Stice. Members, any questions for the testifier?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yes, Mr. Chairman.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you for coming, Mr. Stice, and thank you for
providing us with this handout. It's shocking. What would you say would be an
affordable price for a house that your friends that you paddle with could afford?
MR. STICE: Well, it's a function of interest rates, and right now interest rates are very, very
attractive, and they may not be for much longer, but if, if, you know, many people that
are working two jobs on Maui, which is a standard person, I think could afford
somewhere in the $400,000 range if husband and wife are both working. And that's -COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And what income level would that be?
MR. STICE: I'm trying to transfer that into a monthly payment. Let's say it's a $350,000
mortgage, that would probably be in the neighborhood of $1,700 a month, and I know
that's ridiculous to call it affordable, but that's where we're at.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So, you have friends that you paddle canoe with that could
afford that?
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MR. STICE: Oh, yeah. I mean they're working class people, and, I mean, everybody's fully
employed right now. That's nice. I mean there, there's no lack of jobs, and the, you
know, the, the jobs are paying better. Construction guys are fully employed and, and
most of the people working hotel jobs have more than enough employment.
So, that's not an issue. It's a matter of timing. A year from now, two years from now
interest rates could be 8-Vz percent. That, in itself, is going to drive the market down, and
it's going to reduce speculation. But we need houses right now. We don't need them
two years from now.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any more questions for the testifier? If not, thank
you, Mr. Stice. Next testifier is Verna Podlewski.
MS. PODLEWSKI: Good evening, Council Members. Again, I'm Verna Podlewski, and I am a
resident of Haliimaile. I have resided there since 1999, and my husband has grown up in
Haliimaile.
I am very grateful that we are trying to offer housing for other residents. We are very
fortunate to purchase right before the market skyrocketed. Haliimaile is a beautiful place
to live, and I believe others should be allowed to live in a neighborhood like ours. We
already have difficulty getting up Haleakala Highway. I personally do not drive left up
the highway. I already go on Baldwin, so a new subdivision would not necessarily
impact me going up mauka.
I would appreciate if Council would help move State DOT to put in those improvements
on Haleakala, and, let's see, I believe the developer has done their best to provide the
proper infrastructure, the water, the wastewater, and I hope you will consider this project.
Mahalo.
VICE-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you very much. Members, any question for the testifier?
If not, thank you very much. The last person that signed up for public testimony is
John Belles. John.
MR. BELLES: Hi, Council Members, I just want to make it quick and short. First of all, the
Haliimaile property, A & B does not have the clear title to that property. We did the
homework on that property. We know who has the title, and also I think that's way too
many houses for, you know, this side of the island. I see you guys in our community
now, coming here to level our community. You guys already did Lahaina. Now you
guys coming out here, you guys like do us, too. You know what I mean?
So, yeah, and, and, you know, like, our Council Members as far as our community-wise,
our representative, I don't know where he, I don't what he's doing for our community,
but all I see is building, you know, and clear title issue is, is getting bigger and bigger.
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We have, we have no, the County has no clear titles, in fact, because I went to the title
research place, and all you have to do is just draw something up on paper, and they
promote the development like that. It's amazing.
And, anyway, I just wanted to say I support the housing if, you know, it's affordable.
You know, you're talking, what, 300,000, 400,000, maybe 5, half a million dollars. I
don't think that's affordable for local people.
So, the people that want the housing program, you gotta think about, you gotta think
about us first, because what happening here is we getting left behind, we getting pushed
on the side, and we coming in last instead of, we should be first. We the island people.
Everything else should revolve around us not, you know, not the other way around. I
think everything is being done backwards pretty much.
And, yeah, I don't support, I don't support it. The title's not clear. You guys should take
the responsibility to trace the titles instead of keep ripping people off. Everybody's on to
it already, you know what I mean? It's getting stale. And that's all I got to say.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you very, thank you very much. Members, any questions
for the testifier? If not, thank you very much. Next testifier, Zandra Souza Amaral.
Zandra.
MS. AMARAL: Aloha ahiahi kuumau(?) hoaloha. Arne ohana hoopai. Good evening my
friends. I stand before you in favor of the project, project in Haliimaile. And as a
member of Maui Nui Affordable Housing Task Force, when we first started this, some of
you sit on our committees, and you went through the rigorous research. And I think one
of the things we found out most of all is that our children cannot afford homes here.
I am a realtor, and what breaks my heart is that in my profession, as long as I've been
doing this, I cannot find a house that my son with my three mo'opuna kanes can afford.
He works hard. His wife works hard. He coaches. He tries to be a good father, good
provider, but it's very, very, very difficult.
To my ohana, the Hoopai's, they know that though I'm for it, I empathize with their
concerns regarding the title. And I think that once and for all really what needs to be
done on the legislative level is really to have a workshop where we can put this to rest.
Because every time I come to a Council meeting before the Land Use this comes up.
And I have four, three mo'opuna kanes with the last name Hoopai, his brother, her, her
son, and I love them dearly, but it becomes an issue. It becomes an issue between my
family, your families and all of us.
So, I think perhaps education is something that we can use to eliminate the fear factor so
that when we come before you with projects, good projects, we can make decisions based
upon law of which I have no knowledge in, but I do think this is something that needs to
be addressed for the betterment of getting houses expedited, because that was one of the,
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one thing, one of the biggest things in my committee, in our committee that we found
drove up the cost of housing. Not only the cost of land, but the rigorous loop holes the
developers would have to go through.
Also, going through, planning for a subdivision, complying with the laws as they stand
on the books only to have it come before a different committee, whether it be the
Planning, whether it be community, whether it be you the Planning Committee here or
the Commission.
The laws change, the rules change, and I wonder, I thank all of you for working on that,
because I know you guys are, and I know that you are taking to heart the
recommendations we made as a Committee. And I appreciate all of the work that you
have done, but I really, really do think that this project is a good thing for Haliimaile. I
am from Kihei now, born in lao Valley, raised in Paukukalo in the Territory of Hawaii.
My son resides up here.
MS. NAKATA: Three minutes.
MS. AMARAL: I leave you all with a closing. I humbly ask all of you to support the project,
but foremost on the, on the burner try to educate the public. Not only the County, but the
State. Get together and put on workshops to educate ownership of property. This is
something that we have, we have seen, and we are going to continue to see. Put it to rest,
and only education can do that through perp ... , perpetuating the law as it is. Letting us
know what is it that we should and shouldn't do. Mahalo. A hui ho, malama.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Zandra. Members, any questions for the testifier?
If not, thank you very much. Zandra was the last, last person that signed up for testifying
in this hearing. Is there anyone out there that would like to testify at this time?
Members, without any objections, seeing no one coming up, the Chair would like to close
public testimony. Thank you very much .

. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, before we go any further, what I'd like to do is, at
this time, call for a dinner break, and we'll reconvene at about 6:00, 7:15. So, we'll take
a dinner break and be back here by 7:15. Any objections to that? Thank you very much.
So, we'll recess until 7:15 .... (gavel) . ..
RECESS:

6:20 p.m.

RECONVENE:

7:34p.m.

VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: ... (gavel) . .. The Land Use Committee meeting is reconvened.
Thank you, public, for your patience. Okay. At this time I'd like to call on the
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developers to come up and do their presentation in regards to the project that we are
discussing, which is Land Use 4. Mr. Vicens and Mr. Faulkner.
MR. VICENS: Good evening, Vice-Chair and Members of the Committee. As I went over this,
this afternoon, part of the petition is to change the configuration of the park from where it
was perpendicular to the, to the highway, Haliimaile Highway to now parallel, so that,
that involved a changing of the, of the, the, the park, the 10 acres here, and then redis ... ,
redistributing the, the 45 acres to develop the R-1 housing.
As you all know, on the bottom of the, of the, the lower side of the project is the sewer
treatment facility and the, and the pond, 7.7994 acres, 45 acres and 10 acres of park. So,
this is the configuration that was originally in the Community Plan, and what you see in
front of you is as it sits right now. Any questions on this, gentlemen and lady, please?
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you very much. Members, any questions? Member
Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Chubby, was the change required by the State Land Use
Commission to provide a buffer -MR. VICENS: Part of it was a safety issue buffer, but the more, I think, and part of it was the
fact that there is a change in elevation from this point here to the, to the bottom of about
160 to 170 feet on the topography.
So, what would happen is the park would not be an effective park. It would, it would be
rolling, and so we thought if we brought it here, we'd accomplish two things. We'd
create a buffer between the, the, the roadway and the residents, and put the park on a
level playing field, if you will.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
Right, because I noted that the State Land Use
Commission asked you to put a buffer between the ag use to protect the housing, so ...
MR. VICENS: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any more questions for Mr. Vicens?
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Just on that part?
MR. VICENS: No, yeah, only on this part.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah, just on that part.
MR. VICENS: Okay. Let me, let me change up here.
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VICE-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
MR. VICENS: The second board, I, I don't how well you can see the red outline, but the, the red
outline is the project site, and if you look at the, if you look at, to its, to your right, you'll
see the village. This is the current village.
So, what happens with our development is we basically complete the ring. There was a
three-quarter quadrant, and then we're, we're coming in with the last quarter to, to finish
off the town itself. Directly to the, to, to the right of the project is that industrial area that
Maui Land and Pine has. They are considering creating a commercial center at that point
but that's for them to, and another day. But we anticipate that, this is the reservoir that
we have here. There's another reservoir below the project.
The sewer treatment plant will be an Rl treatment type water. And what we've talked to
the plantation about is taking the water into the reservoir and then pumping it back so that
you'd have a, a, a large volume plan. Initially, when you're building homes, you can't
sustain the flow of the, the plant anyway for the vegetation. Our goal also is to use that
water, the recycled water back in the park and in the buffer that runs around the perimeter
of our property.
So, this is the, the project site. This is the current village and the park and the pond. Any
questions?
VICE-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Members, any questions in regards to this piece of information?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Question, Chair.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, thank you. Mr. Vicens, the sewer treatment site, I
guess, during a Planning Commission hearing there was some concern about the site.
Has that been resolved?
MR. VICENS: Oh, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah.
MR. VICENS: There, there's, this, this site will be, they've got some basins over here for
overflow, but the plant is an absolutely, it'll be the state of the art. There will be no
emissions, no residue, that type of thing. That was resolved quite well, and we have our,
our consultant here also. Thank you, Mr. Molina.
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VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any more questions in regards to this exhibit here? I
just have one. From the plant, you go down to the reservoir to discharge, and you come
up with another transmission line to your park area -MR. VICENS: That's correct.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: -- and, and as well as your walkways.
MR. VICENS: That's correct.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Fine. Thank you.
MR. VICENS: Yeah, the trade off there is having to build a storage tank as opposed to using
one that's already there, a facility.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions? Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: The discharge into the reservoir would that, what, what
will be the quality of that discharge?
MR. VICENS: RI, the equivalent of drinking water.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So, it won't, it won't damage the stilts?
MR. VICENS: No, definitely not. Definitely not.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Have, have you guys done any surveys as to-MR. VICENS: Well, we have our consultant here tonight. He can speak to that, that particular
subject, but they, they do, they do this kind of thing. They're doing this in, in Kihei.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Wait a minute, Chubby. You need to let me finish my
question.
MR. VICENS: Oh, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: That's not what I was going to ask you. The State Land
Use Commission wants you guys to do a survey to see how frequently stilts visit this
reservoir, and I know that you haven't done that yet.
So, they want a survey for a two-year period because the reservoir is, they want to
determine whether or not the reservoir is a nesting place or a habitat for the Hawaiian
stilt, because Fish and Wildlife feels that it's important that you don't do anything that
would harm the Hawaiian stilt. So, when do you plan on doing that survey?
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MR. VICENS: Well, the,!, I think we can actually start the survey almost immediately. I mean
the, as far as the observation of it is, is concerned. This project will, from the time we
start to the time of completion, will, will use up about two years.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: It'd be nice to know because it's been six years since the
Land Use Commission, you know, asked you to do this.
MR. VICENS: Well, can I answer it this way?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Sure.
MR. VICENS: We've been on the docket for five years trying to get here, and that's probably
why we've delayed doing anything, because, I mean, the project may never have
surfaced. So, now that we know, at least we've got an opportunity to move it forward.
We're here, and we're willing to do whatever we promised. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chubby, in regards to that site map there, in regards to drainage,
how will your drainage apply to this particular project? Do you, do you going to have
some drainage, well, the runoff going to that sediment pond below the cane fields there?
MR. VICENS: Mr. Toba's here. I could answer it, but he, he can answer it better.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Mr. Toba.
MR. VICENS: We were just talking about that today.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. Okay. Fine.
MR. VICENS: Mr. Bert Toba is our consultant.
VICE-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
MR. TOBA: Mr. Chairman, Council members, my name is Bert Toba. I'm with the engineering
firm of R.M. Towill Corporation now. We'll be designing the site, site improvements.
As for your question, the project is designed such that all the increase in runoff will be
intercepted by several basins. The primary basin is located on the bottom of the site.
So, anything flowing down to the bottom can be intercepted. There's also two smaller
basins in the park areas. So, runoff from the fields here will be intercepted, so they
wouldn't cause damage to the housing below. Any excess runoff, which currently flows
through, which we wouldn't be required to retain will be discharged into the cane fields.
And we've been told that the plantation will accept that.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA:
Thank you very much.

Thank you.

Members, any question for Mr. Toba?
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MR. TOBA: Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Continue, Chubby.
MR. VICENS: What I've got in front of you now, this is Haliimaile Road, this is the 10-acre
park broken into two pieces--an active park and a passive park where we think, we're
trying to separate the toddlers and the old folks on one side and the active kids on the
other side where we'd have softball, basketball. Depending on what, and I saw Mr. Buck
here earlier, depending on what the community and, and Parks and Recreation feel is the
most effective use of that area, that's what we'll end up doing.
The current configuration here includes roadways for emergency, for us to get out of the
property or have Fire Department crews come into the property. So, these are the, the
delineations for, for movement in and out of the property. The current configuration
shows approximately 148 units. You'll note the petition called for 196.
When we took a look at the land, and Jeff Faulkner's here, and we'll, can explain it
further if you need, when we looked at the topography of the land, and we noted, as I said
earlier, there's a drop from the top side to the bottom side of somewhere in the
neighborhood of 160 to 170 feet, we thought that we might be best, it might be best to
reserve view planes and, and minimize the amount of dirt that we moved around. Thus,
and when we did a couple focus groups up in Haliimaile, the people were in favor of
slightly larger lots.
Originally in the 196, there were some 6,000 square foot lots. Our minimum lot now is
7,500. Got a lot of 8,000 in the center, and some 10,000 plus along the, along the edges
over here. Of course, the project includes a perimeter walkway and a buffer zone of 40
feet on either side of, of our property so that we can separate ourselves and our children
from the, from the, the industrial use.
We plan to put some safety features such as low fences to keep, to keep anybody from
wandering out of the community. Then the basin on the bottom side as we spoke earlier
will be the latest in the technological field for this particular type of project.
So, that's basically what we're looking at. We're looking at approximately 148 to 150
units, depending on what we find when we start grading the property with the proper
permits after zoning has been achieved, if and when.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chubby. Members, any question regarding this
exhibit and the configuration of the lots and the number of lots?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo.
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you. Chubby, good evening. I just, in order
for me to understand the number of lots -MR. VICENS: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: -- or the number of house-lot packages that you're going to be
providing, yeah, the initial application indicated 196. Now we're talking 140 to 148 or
150.
MR. VICENS: Approximately.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: I think my question has to do with the affordable components,
yeah.
MR. VICENS: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Because what is the component going to be based on, the
original application number, because it's still going to be R-1, so you're going to deal or
provide the number of affordables based on the original application number or on what
you now will be creating?
MR. VICENS: Councilman Mateo, as I see it, there are two ways that we can, we can discuss
this. One would be, to be able to say, okay, we can take 10 percent of 150. That's 15
lots. Or we can take 10 percent of the 196, which would give almost five more lots to
the, to the package. I mean that's .. .(change tape) . .. I mean we're not, I think, I think
we're okay up to that point.
The one thing we want to remember about this particular project, well, there's a couple
things. One, this project is burdened by the fact that we have to drop a well for this
particular project alone, which is kind of unprecedented. So, you're talking about
$3 million. We've got a sewer treatment facility, which will add another 1.3 to it.
Then the second component is the more affordable homes you place on this project, and
we intend to build the homes, the burden of, of relief after cost, let's assume for a second
that, that we can, the 100 percent will, will go for about 158,000, 258,900 at, at 100
percent based on today's median market.
So, that's the selling price. If we're talking about a landed cost with infrastructure and
building, which is somewhere between 150 and 200 today, we're talking about leaving
about a hundred, about $100,000 on the table for every affordable home we, we package.
That cost gets passed on to the, the neighbors.
And I would, I would hate to, 1'd like to see some balance, Councilman, where the, we,
we can bring in the lower end and still not hurt the middle or the upper end part of the,
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the community, because they're the same people. They're the ones that are neighbors
today that will be moving into this area.
So, I think there's a balance. So, I mean we can, you know, this is a discussion we can
have as to what that number finally becomes. And I think, I think we want to be fair to,
to everybody, the person that's buying the market home and at the same time be able to
take care of some of the affordable housing market that we know needs help.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. So, at this particular point, Mr. Vicens, then that
particular number apparently has not really been cemented in, in this case?
MR. VICENS: No, sir.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: And, and also did I hear you say that the potential affordable
rate will be in the area of 250,000?
MR. VICENS: The, the 100 percent of the rate, I checked earlier, is about 158,9, 258,9. The
120 percent of the, of the rate is 319. So, it'll be in that range for the affordable market.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay, and, and, Chairman, if I, if I may-VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: -- and you may cut my line at any time. So, if this is going to
be the affordable rate, what is, what is your projected marketables going to be going for?
MR. VICENS: I think at this time it's, it's really difficult to give you a final number, but I can
tell you what our intentions are. Our intentions are to have a menu of sizes; 1,800 square
feet, 2,000 square feet, 2,200 square feet and 24.
So, a buyer comes in, we'll sit down with them, we've got "x" number of models, and
depending on what price that they can afford or qualify for, be it 1,800 through 24, they
will settle on that, and then the lots will, we'll configure the lots to try and take care.
This way, I think, we can be consistent and fair to everybody rather than have a, a carte
blanche across the board and say this, everything's going to go for 650.
So, we may be able to get some of the numbers down depending on the size of the home.
You gotta remember that maybe some of these are first-time buyers. They hardly can,
they can qualify for 450 or 550 type of home, but, you know, they certainly don't qualify
for the affordable, and that's what we're trying to do. We're trying to, to fit the house to
the, not only the appetite of the client, but their, their pocket books.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. So, this starting 258, then, like the number of
affordables that is apparently negotiable at this particular point, is this 258 also
negotiable?
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MR. VICENS: I think it's a fixed amount.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Downward?
MR. VICENS: I think it's a fixed number at 100 percent.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay.
MR. VICENS: I think it is.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. So, so, this is what, this is what the project is looking at
and calling affordable units -MR. VICENS: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: -- 258,000?
MR. VICENS: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. But the number, again, of total houses will be still
negotiable; is that what I'm hearing?
MR. VICENS: It's on the table.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. Now, with, I guess you've heard earlier testimonies that,
from the Maui Nui Housing Task Force that is looking at, instead of a 10 percent, a 20
percent. Is that, is that also something that your project would be able to consider?
MR. VICENS: I think that, again, it depends on what number you're using. If you're using 148,
or you're using 190, 196 as a base. There's a point where we'll evaluate, we'll evaluate
the project and say that we cannot make it pencil out, or we can make it pencil out. And I
would, I would hate to get to that point.
I think that we can be fair to everybody, and I think we've waited, this project has been
going on since '98 or '99. And we'd just like to have a shot at it, and we, all I can tell
you is we'll be fair and try and keep the margin for the homes as low as we possibly can,
again, understanding that we are responsible to a large group of stockholders.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. Thank you very much. Thank you, Chair.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Anderson, questions.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I was going to wait on affordable housing, because we
were discussing something else, but since Member Mateo brought it up, I'd like to
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follow-up. And then I do have some questions on the subdivision also, a layout. But you
said that at a 100 percent you're looking at 258,9. Now, you already have a condition to
do low, low moderate, and moderate from the State Land Use Commission.
MR. VICENS: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So, how are you going to, going to address low?
MR. VICENS: Well, we're using the, we're actually using criteria afforded us by the Housing
and Human Concerns, and I, I wouldn't want to answer for her. So, I think that's an
appropriate question for the Director. We're going on a recommendation of what, of
what we received, and it's, it's in your packet where her, her recommendations have been
noted. I think it's in Section 5 of the packet we gave you.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: But you still have to fulfill the condition that the State
Land Use Commission placed on this project which requires low, low moderate, and
moderate affordable housing.
MR. VICENS: Yeah, again, I think the Director is, is the defining person who can tell us what
that number really is or where that number is. They've, she has indicated that 100
percent of median is the number we're starting with. Now, if she decides or the
combination of the both of you decide that it's going to be something different, then we'd
like to know that. But according to the memos that I received, this is where we're at right
now.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, I think-MR. VICENS: I can only speak in the present.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: -- okay. But I, I think that low according to the HUD
Guidelines is at least 80 percent of the median income, not 100. And I know if you're
doing 148 houses and the 10 percent sticks, which I'm hoping doesn't, I think at least 20
percent. But if it's 10 percent, you're only looking at 14 houses. So-MR. VICENS: Or 19 depending on what the Council's pleasure is.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, and that's the other thing. I, I think that we would
really like to see some firm numbers before we give you an approval, whether we're
approving 148 houses, 10 percent affordable or 20 percent affordable, or are we
approving 196 houses because that makes a difference.
MR. VICENS: I agree.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Back to the subdivision. You have all these roads that
have arrows going out where, I know you explained to us on the, on the left side of the
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project those, those roadways that go whatever, what is that, towards Haliimaile, those
you explained were, were requested by the Planning Department and, I guess, the Fire
Department for an exit route, but they will normally be chained.
MR. VICENS: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So, what about all the other exits?
MR. VICENS: All of them, all of them were chained. This is, this road was put in here as a
additional service road to get down into this particular area.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: But it goes out beyond ...
MR. VICENS: It goes beyond our property line. The pond that I was speaking of -COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay.
MR. VICENS: -- is down here. That's where the, that's where we're going to take the water-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So, that's ...
MR. VICENS: -- providing we don't have a problem, yes. And these two arrows will be
stopped right here. They will -- they won't go anywhere. This is in case we do a future-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Expansion.
MR. VICENS: -- a future expansion of the project, but it has no bearing on any future decisions.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And then the other one on this end that's ... no, going this
way, yeah.
MR. VICENS: Again, it's just a route, it's just a route to be able to, to allow for, for emergency.
That's the only reason it's there. And we've, we've discovered ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: How many emergency exits do you need?
MR. VICENS: Well-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: That's one, two, three, four, five.
MR. VICENS: -- you've got, you've got five. You've got five. And what we did is we, we took
our plans, we went to see the Director of Planning, and we said can this work? And, and
he said, yes, and that's why we moved in this direction. We actually had a couple more
that we took off.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, I know that originally everything was, was
cul-de-sacs. It was one way in -MR. VICENS: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: -- and one way out. So-MR. VICENS: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: -- it just seems that you're setting up for expansion to me.
MR. VICENS: Well, this is again the industrial area that's to the right.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right.
MR. VICENS: So, I don't, these are the only two that I would, I would say that, that would be
any, have any future potential. But those will be closed off initially anyway -COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay.
MR. VICENS: -- and subject to anything that we do in the future, and approvals need to be
gotten at that point.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any more questions in regards to this exhibit? Okay.
Next exhibit, if you do have any.
MR. VICENS: No, that's it-VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: That's it?
MR. VICENS: -- for our part of the presentation.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA:
Mr. Vicens?

Okay.

Thank you very much.

Any more questions for

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: I have questions on other components of the project.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Fine. And, Members, just to let you know, I'm going to
be calling each of the departments to come forward for comments and Q and A by the
Members.
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So, if you do have burning questions in regards to affordable housing, you know, we're
going to be having our Director of Housing and Human Concerns also responding to
questions. Okay. Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Mr. Vicens, there's a couple of
communications from the Department of Water Supply to Chair Carroll and also, I
believe, and there's comments regarding, hang on one second, there's a May 25th letter
from George Tengan back to the Chair. Anyway, there's a lot of, and there's a May 2nd
one to Mr. Jeff Faulkner dated May 2nd.
There, my, my point being, there seems to be two or three letters to A & B with respects
to water, and it's different components of, of water. Some of them have to do with
contaminant issues, some have to do with inadequacy of water, and I don't see any
responses from A & B. Have you folks provided written responses to the letters that
were sent out between March and May of 2005?
MR. VICENS: I think some of these letters are actually responses from communications that
Mr. Faulkner has had with the Director and the Department. And I think our position,
we've been working with the Water Department for over two years. We've actually got
State permits to, to move forward with, with the wells. We have our, our water expert
here tonight, Mr. Steven Bowles. But the, I think the bottom line, Mr. Kane, is that
we've agreed to work together to try and not only determine what is the best site for the
eventual well.
As, as some of you may know, we originally had five different well sites, and we, we
were, we recommended one particular site. If the Board of Water Supply or the Director
feels that that's not an appropriate site, we're willing to work with them to determine
what the right site is and, and, and be able to do all of that before we do any of our, our,
get any of our COs.
So, we're continuously working with, with the Department.
representative will, will state that, sir.

And I think they're

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Specifically, Mr. Vicens, there's a letter dated March 18, 2005,
from Mr. Tengan, Director to Mr. Faulkner, and in there they talk about, and I think
there's an attachment of map, of a map ... indicates locations of possible well sites,
et cetera, and I think that's what you were just referencing.
MR. VICENS: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Is there anything in writing back, though, that we have, that we
have for review?
MR. VICENS: I'll let Mr. Faulkner answer that particular question --
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COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Please. Thank you. Thank you.
MR. VICENS: -- because he's been working on that.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: And while Mr. Faulkner is coming forward I only note that the
Department note, says in their opening remarks, they appreciate efforts to develop and
dedicate it, dedicate source, but they have, they have various concerns. If you can help
us, give us some verbal, but if there's, more importantly, is there anything in writing that
you responded to the Director that we could have a copy of?
MR. FAULKNER: The most recent response following the meeting we had with the
Department of Water regarding the site was we formally had notified them that we
wanted to pursue the well at the chosen location. Since then in the last response to
Chairman Carroll's inquiry to the Water Department, we decided that they did represent
some concerns that we wanted to further address.
They did point out some other alternate sites that might, we might want to consider, and
of recent verbally have talked with them and decided that we would con ... , in joint effort
work with them to further evaluate some more sites.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay. So, the point that they're making with respects to, and
when they say current site, they talked about high density of cesspools, former and
current large scale pesticide use, other potential sources, et cetera, and suggesting
alternative sites. So, at this point you folks have moved on to consider alternative sites.
MR. FAULKNER: We have.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: That's where you're at now?
MR. FAULKNER: We have.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay. Is there going to be anything in writing, or have you
provided anything in writing in response to the Department's request for consideration of
alternative sites?
MR. FAULKNER: No, we haven't. Just recently, within the last two, two to three days we
came to an undo .. , a mutual understanding of working with them to pursue some of the
alternate sites that they were suggesting.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay.
MR. FAULKNER: So, that could be followed up with writing, but I'm, I'm sure that the
Department of Water Supply will verify that, and as you question them, that, yes, we, we
have that agreement.
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COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay. Thank you. And, Chair, I'll just follow, defer when Water
Department provides comment. Thank you. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Members, any more questions for the developer? Welcome
back, Member Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: I have another question.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you. There's a letter to, responding to Chairman Carroll's
question regarding the Up country route, the Ul proposed terminus and the Kl proposed
terminus. And the letter is from Director of Transportation Rod Hiraga. And the
estimated start of construction May 2008 for the Kihei-Upcountry Maui highway project
and the completion date is June 2013. I think somewhere else you folks have responded
that once you folks get zoning approval that it's likely that you won't start construction of
homes for at least 18 to 24 months following ...
MR. VICENS: That is correct.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: So, how does that play into the terminus, the Haleakala Highway,
Haliimaile Road, the Ul proposed terminus and providing traffic relief for increased
traffic from your project?
MR. VICENS: Again, I think Mr. Cajigal is here from the State DOT. I will just say that in, in
relationship to the Haliimaile Road, Haleakala Highway, we have, we've, we've agreed
to participate in any signalization that needs to be taking place. We've also agreed as a
temporary measure if the highway work that is anticipated to be done and the widening of
the road is not completed, that we would put a safety, safety net. When you make the
left-hand turn coming off Haliimaile, there's a lot of room there, and, but there is, you
don't have a stacking lane right now.
So, we agreed at our expense that we would put the safety device in there if we, if and
when we get zoning. But Mr. Cajigal is here, and I would prefer that he answer that
question.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you. I just wanted to hear your initial comments, because
I believe I read some comments that you folks were, as you just stated, that you folks
have been told, and it's been agreed that you would be provided opportunity for interim
reo .. , to respond to the need.
MR. VICENS: Right. That is correct.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
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VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any more questions for the developer? If not, thank
you very much, Chubby.
MR. VICENS: Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: At this time I'd like to call on the Planning Department.
MS. CVA: Test. Mr. Chair, Members of the Committee. The Maui Planning Commission
reviewed this, these applications back in 1999. They conducted a public hearing in July
of 1999, and they took action on the, both the Community Plan Amendment and Change
in Zoning applications in November of 1999. We transmitted the application up to you in
2000.
At the meeting, there were three people that testified on the, on the applications
expressing concerns relative to traffic, water, and the, the proposed sewer treatment plant.
We also did receive several letters with regard to this application.
Relative to the Community Plan Amendment application, the Commission voted to
recommend approval of this application with no conditions. Relative to the Change in
Zoning application, which deals withestablishing R-1 Residential District Zoning, and,
excuse me, and Public/Quasi-Public, excuse me, PK-1 Park Zoning for the, the 10-acre
park site, they voted to recommend approval of those with 13 conditions. And I'd just
like to very briefly go over those, some of those, seven of them.
The first condition was that a separate left-tum storage lane be constructed on Haliimaile
Road at its intersection with the project.
Second, that additional right-tum storage lane improvements shall be made to Haliimaile
Road at its intersection with Haleakala Highway to the satisfaction of DOT and Public
Works.
Three, that the applicant shall assist the Department of Parks and Recreation in the site
planning for the 10-acre park site and that the park site shall be graded, grassed, irrigated,
and the roadside perimeter landscaped.
Condition Number 5, talked about, the construction of the homes shall not commence
until a traffic signal is installed .and operational at the intersection of Haliimaile Road and
Haleakala Highway.
Condition 7, that the construction of the homes within the project shall not commence
unless the applicant has first secured a new well and transmission lines. The water source
must (a) be sufficient to provide 600 gallons per day of water for each home to be
constructed; (b) be available prior to occupancy of the home; and (c) meet all applicable
standards of the Department of Water Supply. Department of Public Works and
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Environmental Management shall ensure that this condition is satisfied prior to issuing
any building permits for construction of any homes in the project.
Condition Number 8 is that the applicant shall develop a new water storage tank to
provide adequate water pressure to the development prior to final subdivision approval.
And the last condition I, I want to go over, although there are 13, is Condition Number
10, that an eight-foot walking path be incorporated into the project's buffer areas. In
addition, a bikeway and/or walking path shall be developed along Haliimaile Road
fronting the project at such time as future road widening improvements are constructed.
In addition to the Community Plan Amendment and Change in Zoning applications, the
Commission reviewed a County Special Use Permit application for the sewer treatment
facility. And the reason for that is that the sewer treatment facility, as well as the
drainage basin is going to be left in the County Agricultural District. The County
Agricultural District lists the treatment facility as a major utility facility and requires a
County Special Use Permit. The applicant went before the Planning Commission and
received the County Special Use Permit on November 9th, of 1999.
They recently went back to the Planning Commission in February of this year to get an
extension of that permit, and they received an extension of the permit. The condition
amend ... , the Commission amended Condition Number 1, of the County Special Use
Permit to read, that the County Special Use Permit shall be valid for a period of three
years from the effective date of the ordinance granting the Change in Zoning for the
property subject to extension by the Planning Director upon a timely request, or extension
filed at least 90 days prior to its expiration, and then the condition goes on. I believe that
concludes my comments.
Oh, one, one comment I did want to make. When this application came before the, the
Department to request R-1 Zoning, the majority of the lots, well, the lots are going to
range from 6,000 square feet to 10,000 square feet. There was not a condition placed by
the Department or the Commission to limit having ohana units.
With the testimony of the applicant at, at both the site visit and at this meeting, the
Department is suggesting that the Council consider imposing that condition with, with lot
sizes ... with minimum lot sizes of 7,500 square feet, you are allowed to have cottages.
That's the minimum lot size that would allow a cottage, and then it goes upwards from
there. If you were, if you would have a 6,000 square foot lot, you would not be able to
put a cottage on the lot or, or an accessory, accessory dwelling.
So, that would be an additional recommendation that the Department makes. I know the,
the applicant did mention that they plan to incorporate some of these issues in their
CC&Rs, but most of you are familiar with CC&Rs, they can be changed. And so, you
know, we would suggest that that be a condition that you consider.
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VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Is that it, Ann?
MS. CVA: Yes, it is.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, thank you. Members, any questions for the Planning
Department? Ms. Anderson.
COVNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. Ann, you didn't read all the conditions,
and I, I would ask that you read Condition 11 and 12. You also skipped Condition 8 or
rather 6. But I, I'm more concerned with 11 and 12. If you could read those into the
record so that everybody knows what we're talking about, and-MS. CVA: Chair.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Ms. Cua, can you respond -MS. CVA: Sure.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: -- by reading those conditions? Thank you.
MS. CVA: I can. I think I mentioned at the beginning of my, my comments that there were 13
conditions, but I was only going to highlight seven. So I can go over it.
Condition Number 11 reads, that the applicant shall work with the existing community,
the Department, and the Department of Public Works and Environmental Management
and adjacent landowners in community-based workshops to create a vision for the entire
community that would maintain the rural character of this and future developments.
The workshops shall consider such things as school sites, trails, transit, transit stops,
churches, day care centers, and commercial areas, as well as appropriate rural subdivision
standards. The applicant shall report back to the Maui Planning Commission within one
year from the effective date of the zoning ordinance.
Condition 12, that the applicant shall conduct soil testing to detect the presence of
pesticides or other contaminant~ throughout the proposed subdivision for disclosure to
potential buyers. A copy of the report shall be submitted to the Maui Planning
Commission and the Department of Health one year from the effective date of the zoning
ordinance.
COVNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Ann. You know, I think it, it goes without
saying, this is a cane field that this subdivision will be built on. So, it should be no
surprise that the soil will be contaminated. Do you know what the criteria that the
Department of Health uses? I mean, obviously, they're asking that this soil testing be
sent to the Department of Health.
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So, in my opinion the soil testing should be done now before any further time or money is
spent on this project. If it turns out that the soil is so heavily contaminated that it's not a
safe place for children to be raised. Do you know what their criteria might be?
MS. CUA: I, I don't know what the Department of Health criteria is. This, this condition was
recommended by the Maui Planning Commission itself, and we did not, at that time,
discuss the requirements from the Department of Health.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
request?

Did the Department of Health review this subdivision

MS. CUA: Yes, they did.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And in their response letter they didn't mention any, any
concerns regarding pesticide contaminant of the soil?
MS. CUA: I am, I am looking for their letter. Okay. They have a six-page letter. It's attached
as Exhibit 11 to your, to the report to the Planning Commission dated July... (change
tape) . .. Their six-page letter is grouped in sections. They talk about polluted runoff
control both for new development, site development, construction site erosion and
sediment control, and pollution prevention. They have comments on safe drinking water,
vector control.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
contamination.

I don't see anything

In

this letter that addresses soil

MS. CUA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay, and the, you know, Mr. Chairman, when this was
last brought to the Council, I remember very distinctly that the Committee's decision was
to defer this until there was some kind of a master plan for the community.
And I'm really pleased to see that the Commission has recommended in Condition 11
that they, they work with the community and depart. .. , various County departments as
well as adjacent landowners to create a vision for the entire community, because if we, if
we approve this, basically what we're doing is we're building a brand new community in
Haliimaile.
No offense to the people who are already there. I'm sure they feel they have a
community, and a very lovely one, and a very nicely placed community within what is
basically a, a plantation area. And it's very rural in its nature.
So, I, I would hope that A & B would have done this already so that we would, you
know, we talk about comprehensive planning all the time and how that, that is the first
necessary component for smart growth. But yet here we are on the ground, this project's
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been around for five or six years and nothing has been done to comprehensively plan the
future of Haliimaile. All we have is a subdivision of houses.
And I would like to see what the potential vision, or what the potential for this
community is. Where would be the schools, and the commercial centers, and churches,
and day care? How would you lay that out in, in Haliimaile? And what is the potential
for A & B's build out in this area for housing? We're, we're making the first step, but we
should know what step three, step four, step five is going to be down the road.
And I'd certainly like to know if, you know, we've got problems with, they, they've
already been told they need to find another site for the well because of the highly
potential contamination of ground water in the area.
So, 1'd like to see some soil testing done to see what do they have to do to make this a
safe, a safe place. You don't just, you know, cover it over and, and hope that there's no
detriment to the people who are going to be living on that land in the future.
So, I'm happy to see these conditions, but I would really like to see it done now. Not one
year after we've already approved the project. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Anderson. Members, any more questions
for Planning? Member Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Chair. On, on the additional recommendation that the
Planning Department has made to us regarding the, the ability with the size of the lot to
have ohana units built, how would you respond--and this question is for Planning
Department, Chairman--how would the Planning Department respond in light of
Condition Number 11 that talks about having the rural character in this area discussed?
And wouldn't ohana housing on larger lots be part of a rural character?
VICE-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Planning Department.
MS. CUA: 1, I think a lot of the lots in the older communities were smaller lots. You know, I
think the whole ohana concept, is, is more, is more of a, a recent concept. You know, I
think what, when we're, what we're looking at in terms of suggesting that you consider
putting a condition about ohanas is just the additional impacts that it would have on the
infrastructure.
Again, when they were, for the most part, asking for 6,000 square foot lots with some lots
to be larger, just the size of the lots wouldn't allow it. If you, you start at a minimum
7,500 square feet, then there's a possibility that almost all the lots have the potential for
ohana units, and, you know, that definitely should be analyzed and, and considered.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you.
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VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Ann, for that information. Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I'd like to follow-up on that, because, again, I, I don't
think that we should, through covenants and conditions that, that we should be privately
zoning property. If, if the zoning category in our County Code allows for ohana units,
and it was passed into legislation by the Council who adopted that ordinance, then we
should follow that ordinance, and we shouldn't let private landowners come in through
covenants and conditions change the permitted uses on that zoning category.
And while the perceived reason for limiting ohana, ohana units is to cut down the density.
That may be well and good, but you're cutting down the density and by cutting down the
density, and by not allowing ohana units and cutting down the density, you're only really
causing a worse problem for our affordable housing situation because ohana units have
traditionally been used as rental units. And not everybody can afford to buy a house,
even an "affordable house."
And, you know, our crisis on Maui for housing isn't just for people who want to buy a
home. It's for people who just need a place to live. And ohana units traditionally have
afforded people a place to rent. And if we take that out of the marketplace, we're not
helping the affordable housing crisis.
And so, I have a real big problem with that. And, and if density is the problem, then
maybe you need to cut your lots down and not build so many Jots, but still allow the
ohana units, because this is entry housing for young people, for single mothers, for one
income families, and we have a lot of them. And we need to provide for them, too.
So, I have a real problem with the restriction of ohana units. It's in our County
ordinance. It's a permitted use, and we should honor that. And if there needs to be
adjustments, the adjustments should be made by the landowner, not by our County Code
that, that provides for ohana units, specifically for people to have a home to rent. And I
would hate to see Maui turn into a place where the only place people can rent is in a
condominium or an apartment, because as I said, think about it, folks, fifty percent of you
out there end up getting a divorce.
So, we have a lot of single mothers who are raising children, who want to raise them in a
home whether it's rented or, or not. And when they become a single income family by
virtue of a divorce, which many time is no fault of their own, they're left with very few
options, and I don't think we should cut out the one option they have, which is to rent an
ohana unit. So, I have a big problem with that, and I just wanted to state it on the record.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Ms. Anderson. Members, any more questions for
Planning Department? If not, thank you, Ann. At this time, I'd like to call on the
Housing and Human Services Director to provide us with some comments.
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MS. LEE: Good evening, Mr. Chair and Members of the Committee. Our Department is in full
support of this project. The applicant mentioned earlier that there is a 10 percent, a
recommended 10 percent requirement of affordable housing for the project, but we are in
the process of, of revising our policy from 10 to 15 percent.
So, at this time we would recommend 15 percent rather than the 10 percent, because, as
you know, this project has been on, around for five years. So, now we're in the process
of revising our policy, which used to be 10 percent. And other than that, those general
statements, Mr. Chair, we really don't have much more to add, but we'll be happy to
answer any questions.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Director Lee. Member Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you. Ms. Lee, with the 15 percent proposal that you folks
are looking at with a application that came in for a 196 units, single-family lot residential
subdivision, we would be looking at 30 units; correct?
MS. LEE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:
affordable?

Is that something that your Department supports, 30 units

MS. LEE: We support 15 percent. So, whatever the number is it would be 15 percent.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Have you had things come across your desk where you would
have a condition that would be 15 percent or an "x" number of units which is, whichever
is greater?
MS. LEE: No, because there are times when we don't really know what that final number is
going to be. Maybe the Council might allow, well, during the Council deliberations you
may want to change that number. So, rather than identify a number for affordable
housing, we prefer to identify a percentage.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Finally, Ms. Lee, the percentage, and I guess Ms. Anderson
referenced it on the low, the medium and the high for affordable. How would, how
would you folks look at a breakdown for 15 percent of the units? Is there going to be a
percentage breakdown? Eighty percent or greater, 100 percent, 120, 140?
MS. LEE: Yes. Our discussions have been on the 100 percent and the 120 percent. Our
discussions have been about, let's say if it's 15 percent on the 148, let's say. So we were
saying that, I believe it, yeah, 20, like, let's see, the majority, 10 percent would be 100
percent and the 5 percent would be 120. So that has been our discussion.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: No consideration for things lower than 100 percent or higher than
120 percent?
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MS. LEE: No, because, generally speaking, we have been looking at trying to encourage
developers to build for 120 percent or below. We consider 140 percent very close to
market prices already. And then, too, we weren't absolutely sure that you would disallow
ohanas and the ohanas would have provided for the 80 percent and below.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Can you explain that a little bit more because on the ohanas that
would be a rental market though?
MS. LEE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay. Just clarify that please.
MS. LEE: Because those earning 80 percent and below generally are more in the rental market,
in the rental category rather than the home buying category. Because, as an example,
someone earning 80 percent of median income, which is roughly 49, $50,000 a year
could afford a house that costs $204,000. Now, that kind of product is nonexistent,
unless it's a very small condominium maybe, but not a house and lot.
So, that's why we're looking at 100 percent, to be realistic 100 percent to 120 percent.
And regardless of the, what the Land Use Commission said, it said provide opportunities
for low, low moderate to the satisfaction of the County of Maui. So, we would be
satisfied with 100 percent to 120 percent.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: And with the retention of ohana potential as, as, as the way it is in
our current ordinance as Ms. Anderson stated?
MS. LEE: Yes. Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Members, any more questions for the Director? Member
Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Just on a general note, if you can, Ms. Lee, in Maui County what
percentage of people own homes and what percentage are renting homes? Do you have
that off the top of your head, jU,st as a general rule of understanding the, the statistics?
MS. LEE: Sixty-forty. Sixty percent own and 40 percent rent.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay. So, rental very significant?
MS. LEE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay.
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VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Anderson ... followed by Member Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Erase, I don't like to hog. Ms. Lee, can you tell me what
HUD considers to be low income?
MS. LEE: Eighty percent of median income.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so, low moderate would be 100 percent?
MS. LEE: Between 100 and 120, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay, and I'm going to pass because I'm trying to find
something for clarification.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay; fine. Members, on this side of the table, any questions?
MS. LEE: Mr. Chair, may I make a comment -VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go ahead.
MS. LEE: -- on a previous comment?
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go ahead, Director.
MS. LEE: We realize that we will be engaged in a very lively discussion tomorrow as we
present various versions of an affordable housing draft bill by Maui Tomorrow, by
MEO's Housing Task Force, and by our Department. I, I just want to point out that
although MEO is suggesting that a 20 percent requirement be made on affordable
housing projects, that their range goes up to 140 percent. Ours doesn't. So, those kinds
of things make a difference.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you for that comment. Member Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAV ARES: So, I feel compelled to hold up this part of the, the panel. I
would like to ask Ms. Lee, how does the 120 percent compare with what kind of housing
we're talking about for the gap group of people--the teachers, firemen, nurses, and, and
the like? Where, where does that fit in?
MS. LEE: Council member Tavares, fit in to where?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: In, into the scale of the 120 percent, 140. Say if, if a
husband and wife beginning teachers, you know, based on their, their salary. Let's, I
forget what a beginning teacher makes, 25,000?
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thirty-five.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh,35,000. So, it's $70,000. Where does that put them in
the percent of the median?
MS. LEE: One hundred twenty percent of median income is roughly $74,000 a year. So, a
combined income of $74,000 a year is 120 percent of the median.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So 120 percent, okay.
MS. LEE: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So, they could do maybe a little more?
MS. LEE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER TAV ARES: Okay. Thank you.
MS. LEE: Provided they're not divorced and on their own. I mean, you're talking about a
combined income, right? Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
Members, any
Member Anderson, did you find your area?

more

questions

for

the

Director?

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yes, thank you.
VICE-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Fine. Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I'm just going to read this, so everybody has the
opportunity that, to hear, hear what I'm referencing. This is a condition that was imposed
on this project by the State Land Use Commission in their District Boundary
Amendment. As a matter of fact, it's the very first condition.
It says, Petitioner shall provide affordable housing opportunities for low, low moderate

and moderate-income residents in the State of Hawaii to the satisfaction of the County of
Maui. The County of Maui shall consult with the State Housing Community
Development Corporation of Hawaii prior to its approval of the Petitioner's affordable
housing plan. The location and distribution of affordable housing or other provisions for
affordable housing shall be under such terms as may be mutually agreeable between the
Petitioner and the County of Maui.
Now, as I said before, these conditions have been in place since 1998, and I would hope
that we could have an actual plan from the petitioner. Not just, you know, vague
expectations, but an actual plan. And if, if, if it's 196 houses, what's the plan at 10
percent, at 15 percent, and even at 20 percent?
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So, that the Council who are really the policy-making body of this County has the
opportunity to either approve or request a change in your proposed plan, because we set
policy by our decisions and, as I said, this is, this condition has been in place for six
years. And here you are now asking for your Change in Zoning. And no offense to
Ms. Lee, but I think the County of Maui includes the Council, not just the Director of
Housing.
So, I would like to see a plan. I would like to see something firm. 1'd also like to see
what you, what you expect to sell these marketplace houses for, because I'm not, I'm not
real thrilled to trade off half a million dollar, $600,000 houses for people who are coming
from the mainland in order to provide 15 or 20 houses for people who live here,
especially if there's no ohana units that residents can rent.
So, I'd like to see something more concrete. I think you've had plenty of time to put a
plan together. You've obviously been discussing this. And, you know, conversely, we
have to take this plan to HCDCH for their approval.
So, you know, I, I think we're at a crisis point, and we can't just be hoping that you work
it out after-the-fact. I'd like to see it worked out before we make a decision. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Ms. Anderson. Before I go any further, Akaku I
understand need to change their tape and this is a good time to take a break. So, the
Chair will call a recess, ten-minute recess. So, we'll reconvene just about nine 0' clock .
. . . (gavel) . ..

RECESS:

8:44 p.m.

RECONVENE:

9:05 p.m.

VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: ... (gavel). .. Thank you for that extended recess. At this time,
we still have the Housing and Human Services Director with us. Are there any more
questions for the Director? If not, thank you very much, Alice.
For the Members and the public we, we do have a time constraint here. I understand that
part of our electricity will be going out at 10:00. So, we'll take as many departments as
we can tonight. So, at this time I'd like to bring forward the Department of
Transportation. Mr. Cajigal.
MR. CAJIGAL: Thank you. Chair, Committee Members, good evening. I'd like to start with
Council Carroll's letter to Director Haraga dated May 25th, 2005. In that letter it asked
about an updated TIAR dated February 12, 2005. Basically, it refers to my letter of
April, it also refers to my letter of April 20. And Council Carroll asked if that was
considered, that updated TIAR was considered in, in my response, and it's, it's not.
Although that TIAR was dated February 12, we didn't really receive it until early, early
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June or late May. But, in any event, the conclusion of the TIAR states that the projection
was still valid and that, that TIAR was still good.
Subsequent to that, there's also a June 9 update of the reo .. , actually what I asked the
developer to do is to, is to analyze that restriping proposal of that intersection because it
has been over five years since that proposal was discussed. And the analysis showed that
it's going to be a level of Service F. It's before, before and after condition just to level of
Service F. So, bottom line is it's still, it's not mitigating the conditions, but it does
improve the, the, the delays experienced at that intersection.
So, because of that we, it, it just confirms our discussion with, with, with the developer
that signals is going to be needed at the intersection before the completion of this project,
or before, at least before the occupancy of, of those homes.
We also have the Haleakala Highway widening project, which also includes construction
of that, modifica ... , modifying that intersection and it also includes installation of traffic
signals. Our study revealed that the widening of that highway will trigger also the, the
installation of the signals. We hope to complete that project in about two years, and I
also, from what I hear from the developer, they were talking about completing that
project in about two year time, too.
But in the event that we don't complete it, we, this is when we have to really sit down
with the developers and say what's going to, what are we going to do? How are we
going to install the signals? But in any, but there's got to be signals before the first house
is occupied. We could put in temporary signals, and then the State can assume or
relocate those signals when we, we widen the highway or whatever. But it's something
that we need to, to work out with the developers. That's all I have to say. Any
questions?
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Cajigal.
Department of Transportation? Member Anderson.

Members, any questions for the

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you for being here, Mr. Cajigal.
MR. CAJIGAL: You're welcome.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I note that the updated traffic report dated February 2005
only uses data counts from the State Highway's Division through 2003. Do you, can you
give me any, any idea when these data counts are taken and for what purpose?
Specifically for 2003. We have counts from '97, '99, '01, and '03, and I will note it does
not include any additional field counts or other observations.
MR. CAJIGAL: Those, those are part of our counts that we take every two years. It's an
ongoing, it's a program that we, we have to take care of all the, take the counts on the
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State highways, including County, County highways, to determine the growth and
basically it, it helps us with our planning and, and about our projects and all that.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And how do you do the count? I mean, how long a period
is, these numbers are reflective of what?
MR. CAJIGAL: It's a 24-hour count. Yeah, it's basically a 24-hour count. Some, some areas
we do classify the vehicles with how many trucks or, or, and trucks versus passenger
vehicles. But I guess in this case, I believe it's just, just passenger cars.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Just passenger. ..
MR. CAJIGAL: I mean, excuse me, just, just general vehicles, includes trucks.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: All vehicles on the road?
MR. CAJIGAL: Yeah. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so this does not, these numbers don't reflect peak
times? Is this an average?
MR. CAJIGAL: Yes, they do. They, they, our counts reflects peak times for morning and
afternoon and non-computer peaks, non-computer peak times, which is basically, I don't
know, sometime between nine to two o'clock.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So, you concur with this report that the peak-hour
conditions haven't changed since 1997?
MR. CAJIGAL: It's what, what basically they're saying there is they projected, their projection
in 1997 versus what they, what's actual in 2003 is within, and correct me if I'm wrong,
Julian .... (change tape) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So-MR. CAJIGAL: It's basically with, within, it's still valid. In other words, it, it's not. ..
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: -- so, it's still level Service F?
MR. CAJIGAL: Well, I'm talking about the, we're talking about counts here. We're not talking
about the, the, the operation of the intersection.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right, but-MR. CAJIGAL: Yeah. But he used those numbers to, to analyze the, the levels of service at that
intersection with or without restriping.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So, with or, let me just clarify to make sure I understand
what you're saying.
MR. CAJIGAL: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: With or without the project, the intersection is level of
Service F?
MR. CAJIGAL: No ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And with or without the striping, it will -MR. CAJIGAL: Okay. Let me, let me describe. When I mentioned level of Service F, it was
just the, that movement, the left turn movement out of Haliimaile Road up into, going
into Upcountry. Because that was, because that was the restriping that was discussed
earlier, about five or six years ago. That the developer was willing to, to do right away.
But back then it was okay. But, of course, that was five years ago.
Recently, the traffic engineer studied that, that proposal, and he found out that, hey, it's
still a level of service, level of Service F. But in terms of delay, it really reduced the, the,
delays experienced at that movement, but it's still F.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So, I'm sure you've heard that the community is really,
many people in the community are opposed to having a traffic signal, and last time this
was discussed at the Council, there was a lot of discussion about mitigating, mitigating
the problem with something other than a traffic light, like an overpass or an on-ramp or
something such as that.
And with the Kihei Up country terminus being at the same intersection have, do you have
any anticipated counts for what, how that will impact the intersection? In other words,
what I'm trying to get at is, is would you entertain anything other than a traffic signal at
this intersection for long-term mitigation?
MR. CAJIGAL: My recollection of the EIS for the Kihei Upcountry route, it's a no. Because
even, the conclusion of that EIS says that, stated that even after 20 years after, in 20 years
timeframe that any change would still not be justified, because of economics. A traffic
signal would cost 800,000. You're talking interchanges would go in the neighborhood of
20 to 29 million. You look at four or five different interchanges configuration and that's
what their conclusion was.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Nothing in between?
MR. CAJIGAL: No, the, the lowest one was 20, 21 mil. It varies from 21 to 29, and that's the
cheapest interchange.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Thank you, Chairman. Good evening, Mr. Cajigal.
Staying on the Haleakala Highway, the widening improvements that you're looking at as
well as that proposed traffic signal, have you already had preliminary discussions with
the developer as to your scheduling of the beginning of your, each of your respective
projects, so the public sort of has an idea, you know, is there going to be, like, night
construction as well? And roughly about how long for you, the State, will it take to, I
guess, put up the traffic light, as well as doing other improvements to Haleakala
Highway? Do you have a general timetable at this point?
MR. CAJIGAL: It's, we have it in the Fiscal Year 2005. We're looking at encumbering the
funds in, by September 1st, which is, and from there we go out to bid. I'm looking at
bidding this project maybe tail end part of, later this year, and construction to be some
time in March, April of next year. And you look at 24 months from there as far as
completion. So, signal is going to be, it's going to come in at the tail, the tail end part,
we just say two years from there.
And as far as night work, we have not really looked at night work, because we could do
this during the day, which is basically just widening the, the existing highway. There's
going to be a 34-foot median. So, we're going to be about 30, 30 feet away from the
existing road, but there may be some areas where we need to do night work just in case
we, we find some other, in circumstance that we, we cannot control at this point. But
right now it's scheduled for day work.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: I got a question, Mr. Cajigal. In regards to the road
improvements on Haleakala Highway I, I see that we already completed the bottom
portion of Haleakala Highway -MR. CAJIGAL: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: -- into four lanes. What is the projection as far as four lanes
coming up towards Pukalani, and how many phases, and what timeframes are we looking
at?
MR. CAJIGAL: You mean beyond this, this project that we're just talking about right now?
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
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MR. CAJIGAL: I don't have, I cannot answer that at the moment. I can go back and look at our
six-year plan and get back to you later. I'm assuming that you're looking at from, from
the Old Haleakala Highway intersection up towards Kula. Is that, is that the project?
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: No, it, it's from Hana Highway, Haleakala Highway junction.
You just completed about a mile, or a mile and a half.
MR. CAJIGAL: Yes. Yes. Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Beyond that point coming up towards Haliimaile, if you do have
any projects that's coming up, and how many phases, and how long it's going to take to
get to Haliimaile or even up to the Old Haleakala Highway junction?
MR. CAJIGAL: Okay. That's, Council member, Chair, that's the project that I just discussed
earlier that it's, that's going to last for two, two years. It starts at North Firebreak Road
and goes through Haliimaile and ends at the Old Haleakala Highway intersection. That's
the four lane, Haleakala Highway four lane, second phase.
VICE-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: So, that will start in two years you say?
MR. CAJIGAL: It will be completed in, two years after April of next year. So, you're looking
at 2008.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: So, we can see that the, the level of service improving at that
time coming, or making a left turn coming up towards Kula.
MR. CAJIGAL: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you.
Mr. Cajigal? If not, thank you, Mr. Cajigal.

Members, any more questions for

MR. CAJIGAL: Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: At this time, I'd like to call on the Water Department. Ellen, if
you want to make some comments before we start.
MS. KRAFT SOW : Thank you, Mr. Chair. I just want to confirm that we have, in fact, spoken
to the applicant, and they did say that they would work to, with us to look at alternate
sites for the well.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the Water Department?
No questions for the Water Department. Thank you very much. Oh, I'm sorry,
Member Anderson.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah. Ellen, they said that they would work with you on
alternative sites.
MS. KRAFTSOW: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Do you know where, what those alternative sites are?
MS. KRAFTSOW: Well, we looked at a map of potential contaminant sources and
landownership in proximity to our system and elevation and came up with about nine or
ten possible alternatives, and even those aren't firm. But we have a range of areas that
we would be looking in. We would have to look at the hydraulic analysis of those
locations and how they would affect our systems.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: What do you mean the hydraulic analysis?
MS. KRAFT SOW : Meaning different -COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: There would be testing done?
MS. KRAFTSOW: -- elevations and distances from the system coming into different size lines
would all have different effects~ And so, we'd have to be consulting with our engineers
to determine not just the water quality at the site, but how the site can best be integrated
into the system.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So, there are nine sites that would suit that criteria?
MS. KRAFTSOW: There are nine sites that we roughly proposed that are on land owned by
A & B, that are within reasonable proximity to our system, at what looks like reasonable
elevation. Those sites have not yet been eval. .. , they've been evaluated for potential
contaminant sources and water quality issues, elevation and land ownership, but they
have not yet been evaluated in more detail by a consulting engineer, or an engineer to
determine what actually physically works best in the system. And that's what, what,
where we have to work together.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so in the May 25th letter from the Department to this
Committee, Mr. Tengan states that among the factors that you guys looked at was that the
elevation was not to exceed the Pookela tank.
MS. KRAFTSOW: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Can you explain that?
MS. KRAFTSOW: Well-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: The reasoning behind that.
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MS. KRAFTSOW: -- yeah. Pookela is at a fairly high elevation well for us, and preliminary
estimates indicate that it will be an expensive well to run. This project is at a
considerably lower elevation and doesn't necessarily call for anything that high.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Wait a minute, Ellen. You're going too fast for me. You
said it would be an expensive well to run.
MS. KRAFTSOW: Pookela will be an expensive well for us to run. So, basically, it's better, the
lower elevation that you can effectively use to serve an area, the less pumpage you have
to deal with, the lower your expense. And because of the elevation of this project doesn't
call for anything higher than that and could get by with something considerably lower
than that, we just wanted to make sure that we didn't go higher than that for this project.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so, the Pookela well is close to the Pookela tank?
MS. KRAFTSOW: Yeah, it, it really, we were just sort of making, setting an elevation range
that, you know, went down quite a bit further than that and no higher than that.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you very much.
VICE-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Member Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Chair. Ms. Kraftsow, I noted earlier that, I see
correspondence from the Department, and I asked the, the applicant about written
responses to the concerns. I know you're here tonight, and as you've indicated in your
comments that you're, you're validating the comments of, of working together for
alternative sites to, to deal with the factors that you folks point out in the letters, I think
both the May 25th as well as the March 18, 2005 letter, which is basically almost the
same identical letter.
Aren't you folks requiring them to provide you folks with written responses and so that
way we can, we don't have, what shall I say, miscommunications? So, later on we don't
have a mix-up in what was agreed to and what wasn't agreed to. Because so far I haven't
seen any written responses by the, by the applicant to the, to the issues that you folks
point out, which seem to be very serious issues.
MS. KRAFTSOW: We, we were providing, in these cases, these were comments by us to the
applicant in reo .. , in response to things, the, the installation permit. Clearly when the
Water Department makes a, a request or requirement like that, the applicant is going to
come in and discuss it with the Director and/or engineers. And that is what happened.
The applicants have been in discussions with the Department, and it is verbal at this
point. They have agreed to work with us for other sites. As Mr. Vicens said, I think that
they're willing to put that in writing, but they have not yet.
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COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Is it, is it the practice of the Department not to do follow-up to, as
discussed in the meet. .. , meeting that we had on such and such a date, these are the
things that we've ... again, we're just, for us who are reviewing the application and who
are under the scrutiny of the public and the decisions that we make, it's important for us
to get information both from the applicant as well as from the Department on what is
being discussed and what kind of follow-ups are. Because right now what we have in our
binders creates a lot of red flags, and it doesn't help us when we don't have follow-up,
both from the applicant as well as from the Department.
MS. KRAFTSOW: Well, Mr. Kane, I'm sorry. The, the development and the, the most recent
discussion happened right before our Director was going away and certainly he would be
the one to sign a letter as important as that. And so, at this point, all that we can offer you
is the fact that we've had verbal communication. That doesn't mean there is not a habit
of doing follow-up, nor that there won't be follow-up. Just that there has not at this point
been written follow-up.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Any more questions for the Water Department?
Member Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Ellen, good evening. The nine sites that you reference, are the
nine sites all below Pookela?
MS. KRAFTSOW: They're equivalent or below. Most of them are below. And these nine sites
are approximate, because the properties that they're on are, are quite large. So, you
know, we're not wedded even to these specific nine, but these identified nine areas that
we could look at, nine alternative areas.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. So, if it's in, in the general area then, it, it comes with
the Department's understanding that the, the depth of the well is extremely deep?
MS. KRAFTSOW: Right. Well, as I said, most of the nine areas are at a, a lower elevation than
the Pookela well. We tried actually with most of them to put them at a sort of similar
elevation to the proposed Kaluanui well, but there are some that are lower, and there are
some that are higher. And none exceed the elevation of Pookela.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. So, when the Depart. .. , Department's discussion with
the, with the applicant, then knowing the prob ... , existing problems the County itself has
in trying to develop Pookela and the number of years the County has been working to
make this well productive, I hope that had been shared with the applicant in terms of
finalizing or selecting a site for their well as the, the County's going to be requiring.
MS. KRAFTSOW: Yes. Actually, we, we would just be at the beginning of working together to
identify an appropriate alternate site. So, all of that will come into play.
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
VICE-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Any more questions for the Department of Water? If not, thank
you, Ellen. At this time, 1'd like to call on the Public Works Environmental
representative, Director Arakawa.
MR. ARAKAWA: Mr. Chairman, the project, one of the project conditions involves a
requirement for a left-turn lane into the project's interior roadways from Haliimaile Road,
which is a County road. And the applicant is also proposing to build the interior
roadways to standard. So, we are, as far as we're concerned, it's a pretty straightforward
application for us.
As far as the drainage issues themselves, the applicant is proposing the basin at the makai
portion of the site to basically take care of the additional runoff which is being caused by
the development of the project itself. So that also complies with the drainage rules.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Director Arakawa. Members, any questions for the
Director? Thank you very much. Moving along, Parks Department, Deputy Director
John Buck.
MR. BUCK: John Buck, Deputy Director, Parks. Mr. Chairman, as far as the project there,
there will be 10 acres. The original. they're going to be changing the configuration that
the Department is happy with because it's a more flat and durable to do an active field
and not have a lot of the problems with having an area that slopes. So, we're in support
of what is proposed as far as the parks.
We haven't got in, as far as the park, what the park's going to look like, we have not
come up with any details. That'll be a later discussion. If the project's approved, then
we'll discuss with the developer and the community as far as what they'd like to see.
One of the things we will do is have an active field for the soccer and the Little League.
The rest of the parcel will probably will be a passive park. But, again, we'll discuss that
with the community and with the developer at the time, when they actually come into the
detail drawings.
VICE-CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
Member Molina.

Thank you, Mr. Buck.

Questions for Mr. Buck?

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, thank you, Chairman. Good evening, Mr. Buck. Have
you had any discussions with the applicant in regards to having lights on the ball field at
this point or has that issue been brought up for any night activities?
MR. BUCK: We haven't had any recent discussions, and, and I think the discussions that we
had was back, I think, in 1999. We have not had any discussions, and I think a lot of that
has to be, depend on the residents. If that's something they want. But because it will be
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in the residential, and if there is a need for lights, we will try to do as much as possible to
prevent spillage over and the glare into the neighborhood, if, if that's what the
community so desires. It can either be a, you know, nighttime use park or a daytime use
park. A lot of that, we'll work with the community on that.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA:
Mr. Kane.

Thank you, Mr. Molina, Mr. Buck.

Any more questions?

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Mr. Buck, there's a September 17th,
2001 letter signed by then Vice-President, Mr. Vicens, and I think it goes over the
conditions. In there there's a Figure Number 7, preliminary site plan that shows the park
configuration as being parallel to Haliimaile Road, and they talk about tennis courts,
basketball courts, two Little League ball fields, soccer field. Is it your folks' intention to
have it separate, to have just a passive component 3 acres separated by a road, I think
which is the most current plan, and then having the active on another side? Is that what
you folks conceptually are supporting?
MR. BUCK: We haven't really gotten into the designs. Pat Matsui who has been in discussion
from the original onset of this project is unfortunately, is in Molokai today on another
public hearing. There, there is some tweaking that we need to do as far as the actual
design layout of the park. And, again, that will be, we'll work with the developer on that.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Is the intent to have restroom facilities at this, at this facility?
MR. BUCK: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
VICE-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for Mr. Buck from
the Parks? If none, thank you very much, Mr. Buck. Corporation Counsel, any
comments?
MS. YOUNG: We don't have any comments.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Members, any comments for, questions for
the Corporation Counsel? Member Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chair, and thank you for your allowing us to ask
questions. Corp. Counsel, if you can please, Ms. Young, respond to the request made by
the Chair of the Committee dated June 13th, and I think he requested a verbal response
from you for tonight's meeting with a follow-up written response for June 27th. And I
think it had to do with the, the zoning consistency, Community Plan consistency. Can
you make some comment please? Members, it's dated June 13. It's probably the last
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stapled item in your, your binder to Corp. Counsel Moto from the Chair. Can, can you
provide some comment, please, there?
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Corporation Counsel.
MS. YOUNG: Yes, thank you, Member Kane. In this, with respect to the proposed bills, we do
not believe that, well, to start off, there is no proposed Change in Zoning for the
approximately 8-acre site, which would be the site for the sewage treatment plant and the,
and the wastewater, or I'm sorry, the drainage detention basin.
So, because there is no Change in Zoning there would not meet, that consistency
requirement would not have to be met because there is no Change in Zoning for that
property before you.
With respect to the, to the question regarding conformity and consistency with respect to
a subdivision, we would first note that we are not aware of whether or not the applicant
wishes to subdivide the property and, and if, and if they do per. .. , want to subdivide the
property, whether or not they would fit within one of the five enumerated exceptions, one
of, one of which would be the large lot exemption.
But to make just general comments with respect to conform. . ., conformity and
consistency, we would, we would note that in this situa. . ., we have quite a unique
situation because the Public/Quasi-Public Community Plan designation and the
Public/Quasi-Public Zoning designation are not 100 percent consistent as far as what it
allows.
And in particular, the drainage detention basin is allowed in both designations. However,
the treatment plant is allowed in the Public/Quasi-Public Community Plan designation,
but not the zoning designation. It is allowed asa special use in the Ag District, Ag
Zoning District, which is what the property is currently zoned.
So, because that is, there is an inconsistency with respect to the Community Plan
designation Public/Quasi-Public and the Zoning District Public/Quasi-Public, we would
opine just in a, in a very general manner that we don't think it's, per se, inconsistent or
not conforming to have the property designated, to have the property designated as
Community Plan Public/Quasi-Public and zoned County Ag.
So, in that respect we, we obviously would defer to the Public Works Department
because it, that requirement falls in Title 18, which is under the Public Works
Department's jurisdiction. But that would be our general comment that we don't think it
would be, per se, inconsistent or non-conforming.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you. Mr. Chair, if I may, if I can ask a question of
Director Foley. Maybe he can assist in responding to, I guess, an observation based on
the response.
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VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Mr. Foley, Planning Department.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Mr. Foley, I guess we have a general requirement for consistency
in order for somebody to develop a property and that we've just been notified or, and I,
what I understand is that Community Plan and Zoning for Public/Quasi-Public is
inconsistent and yet we have a requirement for consistency for Community Plan and
Zoning in order for development to occur. Can you comment? Is there something that
we as a legislative body in your mind needs to clean up as far as legislation or the Code?
MR. FOLEY: The, the consistency requirement that you're referring to refers to the SMA area
and to the Subdivision Ordinance. Oh, okay. Yeah, there, there's also a, a clause in the,
in the Change of Zoning Section 19.510.040, that Section 3.b., that the, the proposed
request is consistent with the applicable Community Plan Land Use map of the County.
What you may be referring to is the statement that I have made previously that we are
currently preparing legislation that would modify a number of different sections of the
Public/Quasi-Public Zoning District. And one of those modifications would be to list
sewer treatment plants as a, as a permitted use. It isn't currently as a permitted use, so it,
it's being, it's been permitted in this case by a Special Use Permit approved by the
Planning Commission.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Finally, Mr. Chair, if I may just to do a final follow-up on this.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you. Is there any due diligence or has there been any due
diligence done on finding out why the original intent seemed to have it the way it is now,
versus what you folks may be proposing to change? In other words, was there, was there
some sort of legislative intent that you folks are, are aware of, or have you even looked to
see if there was some original intent back then to limit it, or not allow it in the
Public/Quasi-Public for zoning?
MR. FOLEY: Our impression to date, and, and we're not com ... , we're not done with this
specific ordinance yet, but our impression to date is just that the list that was made for the
Public/Quasi-Public District is, was just very incomplete, and I think that perhaps the
drafters of the ordinance intended it to be examples of Public/Quasi-Public use, but it, it
would be much more useful to the staff and the Council if the, if the list were more
specific and included, for instance, hospitals.
You know, we recently had an issue over the fact that hospitals weren't allowed in
Public/Quasi-Public in, sorry, corrected, yeah, it is. There are a number of other Public
and Quasi-Public uses that ... (change tape) . .. in that Zoning District. And, and that,
that modification of the ordinance will be coming to you probably within the next six
months, but first we have to take it through all three Planning Commissions.
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VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Foley. In line with that particular question, I do
have a question for the Public Works Director, Milton. Mr. Arakawa, what just
transpired between the Planning Department in regards to Mr. Kane's questioning, does
your Department have any problems in regards to permits required for subdivision or
sewer treatment plant facilities?
MR. ARAKAWA: As, you know, Cindy mentioned, if the applicant is proposing a large lot,
then there would be a, a deferral issue, but if it's just the regular subdivision application
that's being submitted, we would route it to the Planning Department as one of the
reviewing agencies, but from, from our agency's standpoint, it would be difficult to deny
the consistency just because, you know, of an oversight on the, the part of the County
itself. Plus the applicant had obtained a State Special Use Permit only recently, so, I'm
sorry, County Special Use Permit only recently, so from our Department's standpoint we,
we wouldn't have a problem with that.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you very much. Members, any more questions?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Chair.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you. Mr. Arakawa, do you know if they have
opened a subdivision file on this project yet?
MR. ARAKAWA: I'm not certain at this point, no.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Would you know, Ann?
MS. CUA: I don't know.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Could someone from A & B shake their head up and down
or back and forth?
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA:
regards to her question?
MR. VICENS: Chubby Vicens.
Mr. Toba.

Chubby, can you provide an answer for Ms. Anderson in

The answer is no.

Our consultant is sitting back here,

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you very much.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chubby.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: I have one question for Chubby.
-79 -

LAND USE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

June IS, 200S

VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, Mr. Kane has a question for you, Chubby.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thanks for your perseverance, Mr. Vicens.
MR. VICENS: No problem.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Ms. Lee signed a letter of January 20,2005 in the packet that you
folks provided to us, and in there she's talking about the recommendation that at least 10
percent of the proposed, and I guess she's using the updated number of proposal of 150
houses. Earlier this evening you heard her state that they would be supportive of a, of a
15 percent number.
So, that changed. What is your folk's position on a 15 percent proposal on whatever
number ends up being between a hundred and whatever it is, low number to the 196
maximum build out?
MR. VICENS: The, my, my answer to that is that we're willing to go 15 percent of 150 or 22
affordable housing units. If you're looking for a, a definite number.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Just a minor detail, because I think our agreement is if it's a half
of a unit that it would be rounded up. So, I think you would end up with 23 units.
Anyway, one unit is, you know, hundreds of thousands of dollars less.
MR. VICENS: I understand that.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: And that's something that you folks, it would not be a deal
breaker for you folks to look, consider the 15 percent?
MR. VICENS: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Vicens.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chubby. Members, if there is no more questions for
any of the departments, at this time the, because we don't have the Police Department as
well as Fire Departments [sic] in this meeting here, and some of our Members not being
present. If there's no objections this, the Vice-Chair would like to recess this meeting to
Friday at 1:30. Members, if there is no objections.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS
MS. NAKATA: Mr. Chair, that would be June 17th at 1:30?
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
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MS. NAKATA: Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Do you, do you have a confirmation from all Members that
they'll be available?
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: We, we will have quorum, Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
wondering --

Yeah, but "quorum" isn't all Members.

I'm just

VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: No, not all Members. Some Members will be-COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: In the mainland.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: -- one will be on the mainland. Mr. Hokama will be attending a
funeral.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And I also have a previous engagement, so, and do you
know about Ms. Johnson?
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: No, we haven't contacted Ms. Johnson as yet.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay, thank you.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, if there's no objections, the Chair would recess this
meeting to Friday at 1 :30 p.m., June 1tho
NOTE:

Silence.

VICE-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you very much. Thank you, members of the public.
Thank you, resource people, for being here and staying up this late in regards to this
particular project here. So, meeting is adjourned .... (gavel) . ..

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS. (excused: RC, JJ, and RH)
ACTION:

ADJOURN:

DEFER pending further discussion.

9:51 p.m.
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